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Financial Highlights il
MBRE

2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
(Approximately) (Approximately)
(#4) (#49)
Revenue (RMB million) WAAREF5ET) 3,055.3 2,735.6
Adjusted gross (loss)/profit margin KARE (), FE(H:Z)
(Note) (13.8%) 5.8%
Consolidated net loss &P FEE
(RMB million) (ANREFET) (995.8) (690.6)
Loss attributable to equity A RIRRFE(L A
shareholders of the Company (AR®FZET)
(RMB million) (995.8) (690.6)
Net cash generated from operating — #&&EENELE 2 FH S
activities (RMB million) (AEEFET) 134.1 10.2
Basic and diluted loss BRAEARREEEE
per share (RMB cents) (AR#5) (16.04) (11.12)
Proposed final dividend BETRRHRE
per share (HKD cents) C&M) NIL & NIL &

Note: Adjusted gross (loss)/profit margin represents gross (loss)/ Wiat - SHEBEEE) FIRIRE () /FR

profit less impairment losses for trade and bills receivables and CHEBEIRBEERBGREREREEY
contract assets. BEBKEZER -

SR EEE ERPRERARAE 5



B Corporate Culture & Mission

EEXC R Em

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers

Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or
“Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”).

In 2021, the overall global economic environment improved
as major economies regained dynamic in response to the
increasing vaccination coverage and gradual resumption of
business activities. The National Bureau of Statistics of the
People’s Republic of China recently announced that the China’s
gross domestic product (the “GDP”) in 2021 grew by 8.1%.

Experiencing the market reshuffle and the impact of the
pandemic for the past three years the real estate industry has
reshaped development pattern. The Group responded to the
changing industry with robust operation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of the Group increased by
about RMB305.2 million or 44.2% as compared with last year
to about RMB995.8 million (2020: about RMB690.6 million).
The main reason was the expected credit loss allowances
recognised for financial and contract assets.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The global outlook is clouded by various uncertainties,
including renewed COVID-19 outbreaks due to new virus
variants, the possibility of unanchored inflation expectations,
and financial stress in a context of record-high debt levels.
However, the Group remains prudent and confident about the
world economy and overall market opportunities in the long
term. The Group will continue to focus on project construction,
operations management, cost management and working
capital management, strengthening the business strategy and
competitive advantages and looking for opportunities in the
market for sustainable development to further enhance the
returns to our shareholders.

Kang Baohua
Chairman
17 October 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall performance

In 2021, the overall global economic environment improved
as major economies regained dynamic in response to the
increasing vaccination coverage and gradual resumption of
business activities. The National Bureau of Statistics of the
People’s Republic of China recently announced that the China’s
GDP in 2021 grew by 8.1%.

Experiencing the market reshuffle and the impact of the
pandemic for the past three years the real estate industry has
reshaped development pattern. The Group responded to the
changing industry with robust operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of the Group increased by
about RMB305.2 million or 44.2% as compared with last year
to about RMB995.8 million (2020: a loss of about RMB690.6
million). The main reason was the expected credit loss
allowances recognised for financial and contract assets.

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2021, the aggregate amount of newly-awarded
projects of the Group increased by about RMB1,902.8 million
or 77.5% as compared with last year to about RMB4,357.9
million (2020: about RMB2,455.1 million). The main reason for
the increase was that with the regularization of the COVID-19’s
control and treatment in the PRC and many other countries the
willingness to invest in fixed assets is getting stronger.

£ EI

R

2021 BRFELEEZAREEEES
REARBEEDESMEMERE T -
PIREERBERBESNEZ - PRHER
HErREEAM 2021 F 2 FCGDPE K
8.1% °

FHETEREET 2O =F 2 AMHH
BENREEHE  ZREA@EEL - K&
BIAREELRETRER -

HE2021F12A31H @ AEBERARRF]
R EREBOARK 995.8 5 &L (2020
FEBHOARBE06EET)  BEF
[EHAE I AR 3052 BETEL 44.2% =
EZRARERER G REERANER
BRMEERE -

HrEdx T2 (BEIRER)

20215 - REEMFAEIERBENA
K #4,357.98 & 7T (20204 : A AR
2,455 1B &) REFRMBIEINOAR
#1,002.8 BB L 77.5% ° EHEZHRL
PEEGRINTITEM AR AT L BE
BEREEFRZREINSE -

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
EHEEE AR¥EE HE #E AREES
Domestic Al 51 2,214.9 24 997.9
Overseas NSEN 19 2,143.0 18 1,457.2
Total &5t 70 4,357.9 42 2,455.1

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021



Management Discussion and Analysis il

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2021, the remaining contract value of
backlog of the Group increased by about RMB664.0 million or
5.5% as compared with last year to about RMB12,653.5 million
(31 December 2020: about RMB11,989.5 million), which could
support a sustainable development of the Group for the next 2-3

EEENWEDN

KO (&)

R2021F12A31H » AEBMIAZELA
BE&BEHARE12,653.5H & T (2020F
127318 HAR®11,989585 8T
REAFRBEMHARKE6408E Tk
55% ' AAEBAK2-3ENAFELRE
REENEE -

years.
2021 2020
2021 2020
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
ERtTEE SRS TER
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HRgE ARBEE BEEHE ARBES
Domestic A 191 4,599.0 208 4,493.9
Overseas I 87 8,054.5 93 7,495.6
Total = 278 12,653.5 301 11,989.5

Major technology achievements and awards

In 2021, the Group obtained 5 patents for utility model.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The global outlook is clouded by various uncertainties,
including renewed COVID-19 outbreaks due to new virus
variants, the possibility of unanchored inflation expectations,
and financial stress in a context of record-high debt levels.
However, the Group remains prudent and confident about the
world economy and overall market opportunities in the long
term. The Group will continue to focus on project construction,
operations management, cost management and working
capital management, strengthening the business strategy and
competitive advantages and looking for opportunities in the
market for sustainable development to further enhance the
returns to our shareholders.

E BRI RMBH IR

2021 AR EFEE M EIEH S

EBRE

RRAIREGES TRENL  WRSER
SR FTE I R B IR - THEE R B ARTR
A AR ESITIHE R TH T KE
N e BEAKEHE R EBENTISERTE
REBREEEEL - ARERSHE RN
TRE®R BELEE KEAEEMEE]

TEENE > BRIEAREXRGERERF
BEVENSTSHAFERROKS
NEIE TR RUIREE -

SR EEE ERPRERARAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the
Group increased by about RMB319.7 million or 11.7% as
compared with last year to about RMB3,055.3 million (2020:
about RMB2,735.6 million). Among which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group increased
by about RMB224.1 million or 18.1% as compared with
last year to about RMB1,460.9 million (2020: about
RMB1,236.8 million), contributing approximately 47.8%
of the total revenue of the Group; and

2. the revenue from overseas market of the Group
increased by about RMB95.6 million or 6.4% as
compared with last year to about RMB1,594.4 million
(2020: about RMB1,498.8 million), contributing
approximately 52.2% of the total revenue of the Group.

Cost of sales

In 2021, the cost of sales of the Group increased by about
RMB345.7 million or 15.1% as compared with last year to
about RMB2,629.5 million (2020: about RMB2,283.8 million).
With the increase in revenue during 2021, the related costs of
sales increased correspondingly.

Adjusted gross loss/profit margin

In 2021, the adjusted gross loss margin of the Group was about
13.8% (2020: the adjusted gross profit margin about 5.8%).
Among which:

1. the domestic adjusted gross loss margin of the Group
was about 36.6% (2020: the adjusted gross profit
margin about 9.4%). The change was mainly attributable
to the expected credit loss allowances recognised for
financial and contract assets; and

2. the overseas adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
was about 7.1% (2020: about 2.8%). The change was
mainly attributable to the gradual easing of the Covid-19
pandemic overseas as a whole.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis il

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental revenue from operating leases, net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services.

In 2021, the other income of the Group increased by about
RMB10.9 million or 27.3% as compared with last year to about
RMB50.8 million (2020: about RMB39.9 million). The increase
in the Group’s other income was mainly due to the increase in
net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and land
use rights during the Reporting Period.

Selling expenses

In 2021, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by about
RMB5.3 million or 6.9% as compared with last year to about
RMB71.9 million (2020: about RMB77.2 million), accounted
for approximately 2.4% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2020: 2.8%).

Administrative expenses

In 2021, the administrative expenses of the Group decreased
by about RMB91.2 million or 20.0% as compared with last year
to about RMB363.7 million (2020: about RMB454.9 million),
accounted for approximately 11.9% of the operating revenue of
the Group (2020: 16.6%). This was mainly due to the decrease
of staff cost.

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables

In 2021, the expected credit losses of financial and contract
assets and other receivables of the Group increased by about
RMB557.1 million or 172.7% as compared with last year to
about RMB879.7 million (2020: about RMB322.6 million),
accounted for 28.8% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2020: 11.8%).

EEENWEDN

M OE (&)
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THRX
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables (continued)

The calculation of loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets arising from construction projects as at
31 December 2021 were carried out by an independent specialist,
namely Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (the “Valuer”),
with experience in expected credit loss calculation.

Prior to 2021, the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases. Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past 3 years and adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

In 2021, certain customers of the Group, in particular, some
property developer customers (the “Defaulted Customers”),
have encountered liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of
the macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19 pandemic,
and have defaulted on their debts. Accordingly, there was
a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets and
contract assets arising from contracts with these Defaulted
Customers.

The Valuer adopted expected credit loss model for calculation
of expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract
assets. The total trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2021 are divided into two risk category by the
customers as Defaulted Customers and other customers.

For the Defaulted Customers, the expected loss rates are
estimated based on the weighted-average recovery rate of
troubled debts derived from historical market data and have
been adjusted for industry specific information and forward-
looking information. The Group has identified the enterprise
prosperity index and real estate industry enterprise prosperity
index to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the weighted-average recovery rate of troubled debts derived
from historical market data based on expected changes in
these factors.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables (continued)

For other customers, the expected loss rates are estimated
based on the flow rate matrix, which derives historical credit
loss rates across aging analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets based on the flow rates across each aging
grouping over time. The loss level for trade receivables and
contract assets with the customers overdue over 5 years is
similar with those of Defaulted Customers. The method for
calculating the expected credit loss of those overdue over 5
years is assumed to be same as Defaulted Customers.

As of 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances of trade
receivables and contract assets (after the amounts written-off)
is RMB5,765,615,000. The expected credit loss recognised for
the year and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 are
RMB791,078,000 and RMB2,651,947,000, respectively.

For expected credit loss of the bills receivable from property
developer customers, the Group adopted the same model
as that of Defaulted Customers as these customers of bills
receivables had similar risk profile with Defaulted Customers.
As of 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances of bills
receivable is RMB107,103,000. The expected credit loss
recognised for the year and the loss allowance for the bills
receivable as at 31 December 2021 is RMB56,762,000.

For expected credit loss of other receivables, the credit risk
of certain suppliers has increased significantly during the year
ended 31 December 2021, thus the outstanding receivable
balances due from these counterparties were considered to
be fully impaired. The expected credit loss recognised for
the year and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 are
RMB31,864,000 and RMB67,120,000, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Finance costs

In 2021, the finance costs of the Group decreased by about
RMB124.7 million or 54.8% as compared with last year to about
RMB102.9 million (2020: about RMB227.6 million), accounted
for 3.4% of the operating revenue of the Group (2020: 8.3%).
This was mainly due to the decrease in net foreign exchange
loss and interest on borrowings.

Income tax

In 2021, the income tax expense of the Group decreased by
about RMB45.7 million or 45.7% as compared with last year to
about RMB54.2 million (2020: about RMB99.9 million).

Consolidated net loss

As a result of the foregoing, in 2021, the consolidated net loss
of the Group increased by about RMB305.2 million or 44.2%
as compared with last year to about RMB995.8 million (2020:
a loss of about RMB690.6 million). The main reason was the
expected credit loss allowances recognised for financial and
contract assets.

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the net current assets of the Group
decreased by about RMB876.3 million or 51.9% as compared
with last year to about RMB813.7 million (31 December 2020:
about RMB1,690.0 million). The main reason was the expected
credit loss allowances recognised for financial and contract
assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted deposits of the Group
decreased by about RMB109.2 million or 7.3% as compared
with last year to about RMB1,394.8 million (31 December 2020:
about RMB1,504.0 million), mainly dominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group decreased by about RMB224.4 million or 44.1%
as compared with last year to about RMB284.2 million (31
December 2020: about RMB508.6 million), mainly dominated in
RMB, AUD, USD, GBP and QAR.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB149.2 million or 13.6% as compared
with last year to about RMB950.0 million (31 December 2020:

about

RMB1,099.2 million). The bank loan as at 31 December

2021 were denominated in RMB of which approximately

RMB560.0 million were repayable within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided
by total assets) was 83.0% (31 December 2020: 75.0%).

EEENWEDN

M OE (&)
RITERRBELE

MR2021F12 8318 » "EBMRITER
wE AR 950.05 & 7t (2020F 12 A
31H: HARE1,002BEL) REF
BEHRDHARE 149258705 13.6% °
HZE2021F12 A1 HETERATEAA
REEHE - EFRHARB5600EE AT
—FREE -

REBEEABR(RABGRIAREEST
&) 583.0% (2020512 A31H : 75.0%) °

Turnover days BTSN

2021 2020
Turnover days (day) BAEBX#(X) 2021 £ 20204
Receivables (note 1) FENS RS (M1a 1) 386 565
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B SRR RENEE (HiE2) 383 580
Inventory (note 3) FE(HZ3) 77 99
Notes: Htat -

The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on
the average amount of trade and bills receivables and net
contract assets (contract assets less contract liabilities) as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total
revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost
of raw materials and installation cost of the relevant period and
multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the
average amount of raw materials as at the beginning and
ending of the relevant period (net of provision) divided by cost
of raw materials of the relevant period and multiplied by 365
days.

1. FEU R SRR B R BB S B B R Y
H9 R RSB B E B R R
RREEMEREFPARAEE (RREE
BAERAE) TR AR E SR
WA FBIRLABBE REHE ©

2. BHRNRARENREAERBENE
SN R R BN R iR o ) R A
FHBRERARM B ERRZEERE
LABBE RAHE -

3. 78 A REUI A R R B9 & B3R
R T IERER CRER AR ) FRIARM K &
FAFSRIA 365 KT & ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Turnover days (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables
decreased by about 179 days or 31.7% as compared with last
year to about 386 days (2020: about 565 days).

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables decreased by about 197 days or 34.0% as compared
with last year to about 383 days (2020: about 580 days).

Inventories and other contract costs

The Group’s inventories and other contract costs primarily
consist of materials used in fabrication of curtain wall products,
including extrusions aluminum, glass, steel and sealant.
Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfill a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory.

As at 31 December 2021, the inventory and other contract
costs of the Group increased by about RMB65.7 million or
17.9% as compared with last year to about RMB432.1 million
(31 December 2020: about RMB366.4 million).

Capital expenditure

In 2021, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group
increased by about RMBO0.3 million or 3.4% as compared with
last year to about RMB9.1 million (2020: about RMB8.8 million),
which was mainly related to the construction of plant and
purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in
USD, GBP and AUD. To hedge any foreign exchange risks, the
Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies of the Group. The Group
ensures that net exposure to currency risk arising from assets
and liabilities maintained at an acceptable level.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

B EIRE ()

FERE (&)

WEBHR BRERAEXHL386K
(20204F : #9565K) * WEF R DB
179K531.7% °

WEBA - BEHEMNRNENZEFEX
2149383 K (20204 : #9580k ) » B EF
[RIEASR A 4197 K8k 34.0% ©

FERARMRA

AEENTFEFEHUEEKERAMTAN
MEHER - BIERM - B - WM REE
BE - ARKARRERF A RAKEE K
AYBITIEFPEARMKA  HIWEERE

R2021F12A31H » AEBMIEFEERA
FIR A S AR 4321 BEIT (2020 F
12A31H : HARES66.4HEL)  BE
FRIAEMNOAREESS.7EEILK17.9% ©

BARAZH

20214 » AEEME AT M TR FIE
HAREIAEETL(2020%F : HHARMS.8
BAEL) REFRAEMNHOARKIE
Bre3.4%  FERERXBEMANE R
BB o

SINE R B

AREERBINER T EUETT - REMR
TUAEE o REIR IR SNE R - FAPIRT
SEHIINES K - HRAKBEIAINEETE
MERRXZLEREE - AEBSHERE
AN BUE A A& RO SN R B 3 AR A 1 AT %
SHKEE o



Management Discussion and Analysis il

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021 are set out in Note 30.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment, land use rights pledged for the
Group’s bank loans is RMB367.0 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of time and other
deposits pledged for the bank loans and bank bills and letter of
credit issued by the Group is RMB1,195.0 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2021.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and
associated companies.

Disposal of factory building

On 15 March 2021, the Group entered into an agreement
with independent third party pursuant to which the Group
agreed to sell the industrial factory building owned by the
Group in Chengdu City for a consideration of RMB30,000,000.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the disposal of factory building
transaction has been completed.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

EEENWEDN
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HE2021F12A31H > "EBHRFETE
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e —
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EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the
“Global Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary
shares were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net
proceeds raised were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The
ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011
and the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the net proceeds
from the Global Offering for expansion of its production
capacity, repayment of its existing debts, investment in research
and development, expansion of its sales and marketing
network.

As at 31 December 2021, an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,062 million of net proceeds from the
Global Offering (of which expansion of production capacity:
HK$619 million; repayment of bank loans (mainly comprised
the bridge loan of Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962 million;
expenses in research and development: HK$261 million; and
expansion of its sales and marketing network: HK$220 million)
was utilized in accordance with the intended use as stated in
the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds of
approximately HK$341 million will be used in accordance to the
proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus in 1 to 5 years.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the detail of the net proceeds stated

EEENWEDN

M OE (&)
EHRBEERAEHBRE(E)

HZE2021F 12831 B 1k A8 IEF58

as follows: BT -
Utilized amount Accumulated Unutilized
for the year  utilized amount  amount for the Future plans
ended as at year ended for remaining
Amount of net 31 December 31 December 31 December proceeds in
Use of Proceeds proceeds 2021 2021 2021 1 to 5 years
BZR20215F
128318 BZ221F BZ221F FNBHER
LFE 12A31A 128318 RR1E5EH
FERERE FERERE BRLHE RitERER KBALH Rigstal
HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million)
BERET BERET BERET BERET BERET
Expansion of production capacity ~ EfEER 960 11 619 341 341
Repayment of bank loans EBEBFTET 962 - 962 _ B
Expenses in research and S
development 261 - 261 - -
Expansion of its sales and BReHEER
marketing network 220 - 220 - -
TOTAL s 2,408 1 2,062 341 341
Employees and remuneration policies 1B B R

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,769 full-time
employees in total (31 December 2020: 3,107). The decrease
in number of full-time employees was a result of the Group’s
headcount optimization. The Group has sound policies of
management incentives and competitive remuneration, which
align with the interests of management, employees and
shareholders’ alike. The Group sets its remuneration policy
with reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review
from time to time. The components of the remuneration
package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe benefits
including medical insurance and contributions to pension funds,
as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and share options.

HZE2021F 128310 AEEERAH
2,769%4 (2020F 12 31H: 3,107%) &
BET - 2BET ASKNTHRIIBARASE
EELEIHEMM - AEBRTH AN
WEREEZBGIEREZSE HOFHH -
BRLERE EERBREMNMZEEN—
B AEBTAVEFHERKEL2EE
B kEREENE THTERIR WA
TREHR - FHFEREELRTS
AL W ER (B EERRR RRRSH
) ARIBTEAT MEEHGRR R L 1R -
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAER

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (EE ), aged 68, is the founder and
Chairman of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive
Director on 26 February 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of
the Liaoning Chamber of Commerce (& %% i€ ). Graduated
from Liaoning University (2% X2 with a diploma in politics
in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 28 years of experience in the
curtain wall industry and has been responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group since
1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an executive
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (&5
o8 [E & E A 7). Since the establishment of the Company,
Mr. Kang has been involved in the management of the
Company, including business development, finance and
corporate strategy formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of
various other subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu Futao (£/#8)2), aged 57, the chief executive officer of
the Group and an Executive Director of the Company (resigned
on 4 July 2022), obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering
from Shenyang Correspondence University (B EEER
KE) in 1987 with a major in machinery manufacturing.
Mr. Liu joined the Group in 1997 and has more than 24 years
in manufacturing and project management. Since 2008, Mr. Liu
has been a manager of various Mideast subsidiaries of the
Group. In 2012, Mr. Liu was promoted to the regional manager
of the northeast China of the Group.

Mr. Ma Minghui (58 #), aged 41, an Executive Director of
the Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management
from Shenyang Institute of Aeronautical Engineering (&5 M
Z= T#E[T) in 2003 with a major in public administration.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more
than 14 years of experience in human resources management
and budget management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has been the
secretary to the president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma was
promoted to the director of human resources of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), aged 41, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management from
Jilin University (7 #R K 2) in 2002 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated
more than 14 years of experience in financial management.

Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu (#&8%), aged 56, chief executive
officer of the Group and an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering
from Hunan University (i@ RX2) in 1987 with a major in
internal combustion engineering. Mr. Zhao joined the Group
in 1996 and has more than 26 years in manufacturing and
project management. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Zhao managed
production and technology works in Shenyang subsidiary of
the Group. From 1999 to 2004, Mr. Zhao served as the deputy
general manager and general manager, responsible for the
production and project management work in China. In 2005,
Mr. Zhao was assigned new duty to conduct the projects
operations in America and Africa as a general manager. In
2017, Mr. Zhao was promoted to the president of global
operations of the Group, responsible for onshore and offshore
businesses. On 4 July 2022 Mr. Zhao was appointed as a
member of the remuneration committee, the CEO and one of
the authorised representatives of the Company. Since 2006
Mr. Zhao has managed more than 100 overseas landmark projects.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei (&), aged 49, since February 2013, he acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., Ltd (B R AXRETE AR A F]) (“Shenyang
Yuanda”), one of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in July 2002 and had over 19 years of
experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining the Group,
from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial positions
in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in charge
of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From
2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in
Japanese YKK company. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Zhang held
various key positions including quality control and technology
minister in Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted
as a designer in Middle East Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from
2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer
in Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the
Group’s ACC44 residential buildings, imperial buildings and
commercial bay administration building and other projects. From
2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang
Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer in International
Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of International
Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda, factory
controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (BEHEl), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011.
Mr. Poon obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting,
a Bachelor’s degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business
studies. He was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia
Ltd, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI”) and
The Chartered Governance Institute respectively. He is also
a member of the Technical Consultation Panel and Mainland
China Focus Group of HKCGI.

Mr. Poon has years of experience in regulatory affairs,
investment banking and listed company management. He
now serves as an executive director and company secretary
of Huabao International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 336). Currently, he is also an independent non-executive
Director of the following companies: Sunac China Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1918), Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 1292),
AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
2080), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631), Greentown Service
Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2869), Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2362)
and Yankuang Energy Group Company Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 1171). Mr. Poon was a non-executive Director of
TUS International Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 872) from
1 September 2015 to 17 July 2020, Tonly Electronics Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1249, subsequently withdrawn
listing with effect from 8 March 2021) from 12 July 2013.

Mr. Poon resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of Honghua Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 196) on 1 December 2021.
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EENEREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (# % #%k), aged 52 was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
12 April 2011. Mr. Woo has over 28 years of experience in the
accounting and financial services industry. He began his career
as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where he
qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions
as an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit
Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He
is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Woo is an independent non-executive
Director of SMIT Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
2239). Mr. Woo was an independent non-executive Director of
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 958, subsequently withdrawn listing voluntarily with effect
from 24 February 2020) from 28 June 2019 to 22 April 2020.

Mr. Woo resigned as an independent non-executive Director of
IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029) on 25 May 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (¥ $ &), aged 49, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
12 April 2011. Mr. Pang is a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Pang is the managing partner of Benny
Pang & Co. who specializes in capital markets and general
corporate and commercial work. Between 1997 and 2009,
Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms
in Hong Kong and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s
degree in laws (honors) from Bond University, Australia, in
1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate Diploma in
Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws from The College of
Law, Sydney and the University of New South Wales, Australia,
respectively. He has been admitted as a legal practitioner of
the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia since 1997
and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 2009.
He is a member of both the Law Society of New South Wales,
Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Pang was
a non-executive Director of Huabang Technology Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 3638) from 12 April 2018 to
30 October 2021, Janco Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 8035) from 27 September 2019 to 5 May 2021 and
Sanbase Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8501)
from 8 December 2017 to 30 July 2021 respectively.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended
31 December 2021. All Directors are not involved in any matters
concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAER

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R= ), aged 45, was appointed
as the company secretary and authorized representative of the
Company in June 2012 and has over 21 years of experience in
corporate services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined Fung,
Yu & Co. CPA Limited and is currently the company’s managing
partner. Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary of Beijing
Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 1000), and
Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 631) and independent non-executive
Director of Realord Group Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 1196), Dowway Holding Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
8403), Sincere Company, Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 244)
and CSMall Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1815), all
of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2010, 2017,
2014, 2019 and 2021, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce
in 2000 and from the University of London with a bachelor’s
degree in law in 2005. He is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practicing
Accountants of Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Certified Trust Practitioner of the
Hong Kong Trustee Association.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu (#EFK), Chief Executive Officer of the
Company — see the paragraph under “Executive Directors”
above.

Mr. Tian Wei (&), the chief financial officer of the Company,
aged 47, obtained his bachelor’'s degree from Shenyang
University (EFBAZ) in 1999 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Tian joined the Group in 2001 and has over 21 years
extensive experience in financial management and accounting
work. In 2005, Mr. Tian was promoted as the head of the
financial accounting department in Shanghai subsidiary of
the Group. In 2008, Mr. Tian was appointed as the financial
manager of international subsidiary of the Group. Since June
2020, Mr. Tian has worked for the financial department of the
Group as the general manager, responsible for planning and
management of financial accounting, taxation matters, costing
and corporate finance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance
principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value including setting and approving the
Company’s strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and overall performance
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”). The
Board has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom
the directors also undertake, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEREE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report,
membership of the Board is made up of nine members in
total, with six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board is set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Liu Futao Chief executive officer
(resigned on 4 July 2022)

Mr. Ma Minghui

Mr. Wang Hao

Chief executive officer
(appointed on 4 July 2022)

Mr. Zhao Zhonggqiu

Mr. Zhang Lei
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

ExEe(®)

ERESIARRAZENL B TEER
FOER A R E R RIR AN R A R H R
A EETRE

ARRIERAREHRIHESTLSMRE
BERLNEEFDIEENEETLSR
BEEEBEEENRE -

R2021E12 AN A RARELRE &=
SHMAOZKEMK  HPFBIE6RNTE
ENIBBIYIIFNITES - ESSHAED
IR

YITES

REELE ESi

BlmELE T ARE,
(R2022F7 4 H
BHE)

B A

FREE

AL TTERABE,
(R2022F 7 H4H
EZ(F)

RE L

BAEBITES

ERE L

ERE e

THhBLE



BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

BUEBITES
Independent Non-executive
Directors

FEHRI/Age Group

EEESNERTE
Years of Directorships
Experience

3

RESEHN ETARHE/
Number of Other Listed
Companies Serving as
Directors

0-1

TEE 1 [ A& K fE/Budget management
and leadership skills

HTR 7 ) B4 1 B 8 SR A BB /Experience in
manufacturing and marketing of curtain
wall products

I T35 5 5 A5k /Mainland market
expertise
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EEEAR ()

HITES

Executive Directors

AZEE 3BES 12ES
4 Directors 3 Directors 1 Director
3EESF 15ES AFEE
Directors 1 Director 4 Directors
TRER 1BES
7 Directors 1 Director
EESHEEEE SRR

Board Expertise and Skills

o 7 o % [\ B B 45 45 B/ Financial
reporting and risk oversight experience

BF ) 2 B % 3 R R R
MEERES
Sound judgement and effective
oversight of and guidance to
management

BT AR R A FBUER KB /Government,
legal and public policy experience

AN EREE M#/Human resources
management expertise
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CEEREE

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are
disclosed under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report. None of the members of the
Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of
the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship)
between members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedures to nominate candidate as a Director. Pursuant
to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall
identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, after assessing a number of factors of a
candidate, including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience, commitment in respect of
available time and attention on relevant matters, independence
of proposed independent non-executive Directors and
diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final decision
in relation to the nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at general meetings of the Company. The Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend revision to the Board for consideration and
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board’s
composition at least once annually, and adhering to the Board
Diversity Policy when making recommendation on any Board
appointments.
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CEEREE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that: 1)
the gender diversity at Board level can be improved; 2) this is
taken into consideration about any Board appointments; and
3) the Board has in place a diverse mix of skills, knowledge
and experience, and will increase gender diversity with the
appointment of one or two female members on the Board in
two years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the
Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the
chief executive officer is Mr. Zhao Zhonggiu. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate
persons in order to preserve independence and a balance
of views and judgments. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organizational structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.
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Corporate Governance Report

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service
contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of one year and the appointment may be terminated
by not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any new Director appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders of the
Company at the first general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Woo Kar
Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for reelection
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
18 November 2022 (the “2021 AGM”).

BOARD MEETINGS

Board practices and conduct of Board meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

AN A ),
1E %@ﬁﬁﬁ%

E=ZERER

ARBENTESIR LR FNIRHE
# > MEEAEBEL I EAEEHE
EHARILE - RRARBBUIFMITES
BRI F22E MERERBERHHT
PRBEAEEBEN T ALL -

REARRNAMERMAY  ARF2E
EXAEVEIFHESRIARIAKE
EENZENERRRERNESANE
EREABRRAG LEXDARREE -

EEZT FEREREFLBARESHR
RABHMEBERMA - B2011F4 A8
12BRVHREZESaERNESSA
B MEFSHBEEZARETRS
AR FH S FER T TE BRI o

REAR B ERMAIE 83 K 84 {6 - ERBE
Tk BRI A R P B S A A R 2022
F11 18 HETHREAF K F ([2021
FRRBFEAG D HERMT HEAFE
T R R S AT o

SHNFE QBT RBE—REE R
QEET TR

EHRTNESSERBEANGRET
2L URERERES - ENEBES
grZEeeE  A-RAKTAERH
AN o

SR EEE ERPRERARAE

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
RERRE

BOARD MEETINGS (continued)
Board practices and conduct of Board meetings (continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including the Chief
Executive Officer, chief financial officer and company secretary,
attend all regular Board meetings and where necessary,
other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and final versions are open for the Directors’
inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Directors’ attendance records

Corporate Governance Report IR

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings

and committee meetings being held during the year ended

31 December 2021 and the annual general meeting for the
financial year of 2020 held on 2 June 2021 (the “2020 AGM”)

are set out below:

Name of Director

£34

Kang Baohua
REE
Liu Futao
(resigned on 4 July 2022)
fies
(R2022%7 4 AgHF)
Ma Minghui
ki)
Wang Hao
Ix
Zhang Lei
RE
Zhao Zhongqiu
kst
Poon Chiu Kwok
AR
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
HERR
Pang Chung Fai, Benny
ZHiE

Board

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

Nomination
Committee

R&ZRE

1

17

1

CRERBE

Exgel ()
ERHFEERLCE

HE2021F12A31BILFE §E =
HFEEEERRZEGERUREER
20214 6 A2 B A #2020 F Bf B F [E IR
RAFTAG ([2020 EREAFEKRE]) K50
SEEFIAT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/&EHA

Annual Chairman’s
Remuneration Audit General  Annual meetings
Committee Committee Meeting with INEDs
TRH
BUFHTES
FMEEE ERZES RRAEAE WEESR
11 11
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company would provide to each newly appointed
Director or alternative Director an induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of
a Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company
as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Group also provided briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills from time to time. Further, the Company continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follow:
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Types of training

Directors

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua

Liu Futao (resigned on 4 July 2022)
Ma Minghui

Wang Hao

Zhao Zhongqiu

Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Poon Chiu Kwok

Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Note:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)
B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate

development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)
D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

E. Directors E-Trainings in HKEx

F. Induction Training

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix
10”) and devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Company Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in
major Company matters, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Each Director
is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has
the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management for the discharge of its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in Note 8 to the Financial Statements.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC. The employees of overseas subsidiaries of the Group
participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
managed by the respective local government authorities. In
addition, certain qualified employees of overseas subsidiaries
also participate in defined benefit retirement plan. Details of the
Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 6(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

According to the retirement benefit schemes of the Group,
there is no applicable circumstance of forfeited contributions

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available on
the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Kang Baohua (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
annually and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
o made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment

of Directors; and

° made recommendations to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
professional experience, knowledge and length of
service.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year

according to its terms of reference. One Nomination Committee
meetings was held during the year under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Zhao
Zhonggiu and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level
of their remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their
written terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG
Code, the Remuneration Committee would make available
its terms of reference, explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

° conduct an annual review with reference to companies
with comparable business or scale and recommend
remuneration adjustments, if appropriate;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management
by band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its
performance as it may consider appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the

remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

BExZEE(H)

#

MEzE& (&)

BB EEATAZFRNEXEB.1.514 -
SREEEKENEHZE2021F12 A31 H
IEFE 7 SRS T

Number of individuals

In the band of FrE & E A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 # 7L = 2,000,000 & 7T 2

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-
executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control system and to provide advice and
comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee:

o made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

o reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 as well as significant
issues on financial control, internal control and risk
management systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for
2021, and received periodic updates on the status of
internal audit activities;

o reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year;

° discussed the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. This discussion included the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the
Company three times without the presence of the executive
Directors.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has also adopted an information disclosure policy
which has set out guidelines in respect of handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board is entrusted
with the responsibility for monitoring and implementing the
procedural requirements in the information disclosure policy.
Release of inside information shall be approved by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company shall
not disseminate inside information relating to the Group to
any external parties and shall not respond to media report or
market speculation which may materially affect the trading price
or volume of the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company performing the corporate governance duties as
below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices

on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the
Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. An internal audit
department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The work carried out by the internal audit
department ensures the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.

Risk management framework

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, and reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Risk management framework (continued)

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The internal auditor and senior management
review and evaluate the control process, monitors any risk
factors on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee
on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Significant risks and control measures
Business risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers
or main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial
buildings, the business and prospects of the Group heavily
depend on the performance of the construction and real estate
industries, which are cyclical and could be significantly affected
by fluctuations in economic conditions.

The time and costs involved in completing construction can
be adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of
materials, equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions,
natural disasters, labour disputes with contractors and
subcontractors, accidents, changes in government priorities,
and other unforeseen problems or circumstances. The
occurrence of any of these factors could give rise to delays in
the completion of a project, which may result in cost overruns
and potential disputes and claims from service recipients.
This may also result in the profit derived from the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall system not being recognised in the year in which it was
originally anticipated to be recognised.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Business risk (continued)

The industry in which the Group operates is closely related
to the macro-economy and people’s livelihood. Looking back
at 2021, the overall global economic environment improved
as major economies regained dynamic in response to the
increasing vaccination coverage and gradual resumption of
business activities. The National Bureau of Statistics of the
People’s Republic of China recently announced that the China’s
GDP in 2021 grew by 8.1% when the global growth rebounded
to 5.5% in 2021 estimated by the World Bank.

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges
from the changes in economy environment and policies, the
Company carries out in-depth study on the macro-economy
and policies all over the world to implement its strategies
to develop and strengthen penetration of different regional
markets thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

Industrial risk

However, the industry will remain polarized and extremely
competitive; leading towards the Matthew Effect of “the strong
becomes stronger” as the sector centralises and segregates.
As the market becomes more concentrated, market share will
quickly gravitate towards leading companies.

The Company has effectively coped with the impact of the
industrial risk, reduced variable costs and integrated fixed
assets. Meanwhile, the Company adhered to technological
innovation and obtained 5 patents in 2021 which empowered
high-quality development of the Group in the future.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.
Delay in supply of construction materials, unskilled construction
workers, safety accidents, natural disasters, adverse weather
and other factors may bring risks such as construction
progress, project cost, construction quality and customers
satisfaction, and thus affecting the results of operation and
reputation of the Company.

The Company has established various systems for management
of quality, progress, safety, material and cost of project
development to strengthen the overall management of
construction schedule, quality and safety, reduced construction
risks and emphasize safe development.

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range of
policies and regulations, including the company ordinance of
the region where it locates, financial and taxation regulations
and regulations in relation to construction and listing rules of
Hong Kong and mainland China etc., and the requirements
and changes of laws, regulations and policies may also affect
the Company. Due to the complexity of the construction
projects, the capability for claiming indemnity may directly
affect the profitability of a project. If the project team’s
experience in claims and counter claims is inadequate to meet
the requirements of the undertaken project, especially for the
overseas projects, if the Company fails to properly deal with
claims and counter claims in some construction projects where
the conditions are complex and the demand is high, especially
for the overseas projects, these will cause a negative impact on
the effectiveness and profitability of such projects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Compliance risk (continued)

The Company has designated special personnel to study new
regulations and policies and make relevant arrangements, and
reflected the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in
its business activities and operation management in a timely
manner. The Company also consults external experts for
handling compliance matters in order to comply with various
relevant regulations, policies and guidelines.

Credit risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with different credit
status, and its business development will inevitably be affected
by the varied credit profiles of these customers. In 2021,
certain customers of the Group, in particular , some property
developer customers (the “Defaulted Customers”), have
encountered liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of the
macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19 pandemic, and
have defaulted on their debts. In addition, due to the impact
of the COVID-19 epidemic, certain customers may suffer tight
cashflow leading to delays in payment or the increase of the
expected credit loss allowances recognised for financial and
contract assets. The Group seeks to reduce the aforesaid
impact by identifying and managing credit risks through internal
credit management measures, such as credit search, credit
rating, credit limit management, overall credit risk assessment
and stringent credit control against customers with faulty
payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks through
the purchase of credit insurance. The credit risk management
of the Group are set out in note 28(a) to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Financial risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note
28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the findings of investigations
on material internal control and the management’s feedback
thereof.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Based on the assessments made by the management and
taking into account the audit works of the independent
auditor, the Board and the Audit Committee considered that
no significant areas of concern in respect of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were identified during
the year of 2021.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems performed during the
year, the Board considers such systems effective and adequate.

Material risks relating to ESG

Please see the section headed “Impact of climate change” in
ESG report dated 31 May 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external
company secretary service provider of the Company, has been
engaged by the Company as its company secretary since
30 June 2012. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Alice Li, the secretary of the Finance and Securities
Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the company
secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 71 to 80.

The audit fee incurred during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB10.6 million, including fees for audit
and non-audit services of RMB4.0 million and RMBO0.6 million,
respectively, paid or payable to KPMG, the Company’s auditor.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/
moving a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting):

° Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Office 11, 9/F, Fortune
Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

o The Requisition must state clearly the name of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed
to be included the details of the business(es) proposed
to be transacted in the extraordinary general meeting,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of
any outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to
convene an extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do
S0 in accordance with the memorandum and articles
of associations of the Company, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by
the Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes
only. The information does not represent and should not
be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the
Company to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their
own independent legal or other professional advice as to their
rights as shareholders of the Company. The Company disclaims
all liabilities for losses incurred by its shareholders in reliance
on any contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights”.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong by post through the following
means:

Telephone number: (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and
potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate
with the shareholders as follows:

(i). Corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form
and are available on the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.yuandacn.com;

(if). Periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(ii).  Corporate information is made available on the
Company’s website;
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

(iv).  Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide
a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management; and

(v). The Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company
serves the shareholders in respect of share registration,
dividend payment and related matters.

The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2021 AGM will be held on
18 November 2022. The notice of 2021 AGM will be sent to
shareholders of the Company at least 21 clear business days
before the 2021 AGM.

During the year, there was no change to the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions
that any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be
subject to the approval of our shareholders of the Company.
There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount will
be declared or distributed in any given year.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and outlook of the Company’s business, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and
important events affecting the Company occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 19 of this annual report. An account of the
Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders is included
in the paragraph headed “Relationships with Employees,
Suppliers and Customers” of the Report of the Board of
Directors on page 59 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2021 using financial performance indicators is
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 19 of this annual report and the
Group’s “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 232 of this
annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Company are provided in the ESG report dated 31 May 2022.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the
Group. The conscientious use of resources and adoption of
best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group
encourages environmental protection and complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the
laws of production safety and environmental protection for
enterprises. Since the PRC government is adopting laws on
strengthening environmental protection from time to time and
implementing stricter environmental protection standards,
it is expected that the Group will have to comply with more
regulations in the future. In addition, the Group predicts this
trend will continue and additional expenses may be incurred for
complying with new regulations, thus increasing the Group’s
operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only are we certified with ISO
14001 Environmental Management System, but we have
also set up an Environmental Division to monitor and manage
the environmental performance of our plants and maintain
communication with the Ministry of Environmental Protection.
In addition, the Group has been optimising its management
system for safety and environmental protection, regularly
keeping abreast of the relevant laws and regulations of
environmental protection in order to ensure full compliance with
local laws of environmental protection. Further details are set
forth in the ESG report dated 31 May 2022.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of onestop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year
is set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and financial condition of the Company and the Group as at
that date are set out in the Financial Statements on pages 81
to 84.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 26 to the
Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
15 November 2022 to Friday, 18 November 2022 (both days
inclusive), during which time no transfer of shares will be
registered. To ensure that the shareholders of the Company
are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
the shareholders must deliver their duly stamped instruments
of transfer, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to
the Group’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Link Market Services
(Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower
28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 14 November 2022 for registration of the relevant
transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 to the Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of
dividends to the shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company'’s Articles of Associations, and with the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividend may be declared and paid out
of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this propose. As at 31 December 2021,
the distributable reserves from share premium of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB574.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note
11 to the Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate to
the Group’s total purchase and the percentage of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
to the Group’s total revenue are less than 30%, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none
of the shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the
share capital of the Company possessed any interest in the
abovementioned suppliers and customers.
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Report of the Board of Directors

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its market
competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards and high quality products
to its customers. During the year under review, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
most suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)
Liu Futao (resigned on 4 July 2022)
Zhao Zhonggiu
(Chief executive officer appointed on 4 July 2022)
Ma Minghu
Wang Hao
Zhao Zhongqiu
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are
set forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and
non-executive Directors of the Company are set out under the
section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors”
of the Corporate Governance Report. There was no service
contract entered by the Company and any Directors to be
reelected in the coming annual general meeting stipulating that
the Company may not terminate the appointment within one
year without compensation payment (other than the statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 27 to
the Financial Statements, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which the Directors of the
Company possessed direct or indirect material interests, and
which was still valid on the year end date or any time during the
year and related to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no other contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which a controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the facility frame agreement on 2 January 2018
between the Company and the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Kang Baohua agreed
to provide financial assistance to the Company in a total
amount of not more than RMB700 million. Such advances had
no fixed term, unsecured, and bear interests at 5.08% for the
year ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the
total outstanding amount under such advances amounted to
RMB155.4 million. As such financial assistance were being
carried out on normal commercial terms or better and were not
secured by the assets of the Group, such financial assistances
constitute exempt connected transactions under Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best
Outlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 61.25% of
the issued share capital in the Company as at 31 December
2021. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also
owns 100% interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore
is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well
as investment holding. Although the Company has established
a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain
wall contracting projects, the ability to contract for large scale
public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on
local contracting experience. Given the lack of direct local
contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating with
Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore during the last five years
and will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda
Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will
be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own.
Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda
Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-competition
(“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the controlling
shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of
the compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of
Non-competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company have also confirmed that all of them have abided
by the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they
had determined that the controlling shareholders have not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed
or might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he or she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of the Company’s shares to
the employees, managerial staff and senior employees of the
Group and those other persons that the Board of Directors
considers that they will contribute or have contributed to the
Group (the “Participants”) as described in the Share Option
Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate
their contribution to the Group. The maximum number of
shares that may be issued under the Share Option Scheme
was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to 10% of the
issued capital of the Company after completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of shares
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of
the Company immediately after the completion of the Global
Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may
be granted to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than
those granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be
granted under the options to the independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective connected persons shall not
exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company from time
to time. There is no minimum period that the options must be
held before they become exercisable, and the options granted
shall be exercised within the period decided by the Board of
Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10 years
after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(c) nominal value of the Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time
the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have
been granted.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have
been granted. The Share Option Scheme had expired on
11 April 2021.

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company, its
holding company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting
parties of any arrangements from which the Directors could
make a profit by purchasing the shares or debentures of the
Company or any other companies.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futons Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which would be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to Model Code, are as follows:
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS EERRG - HERORESFHNERR

IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND KB ()
DEBENTURES (continued)
@). Interest of the Company i). RAR B R R
Approximate
Number Percentage
Name of Director Nature of Interest of Shares of Shareholding
BEEHR EmMtE IR 13 8B REMAOB DL
Kang Baohua Beneficial owner 228,636,000 (L) 3.68%
REE EmAaA
Interest of controlled corporation 3,574,064,694 (L) 57.57%
R EE R
Liu Futao Beneficial owner 3,603,333 (L) 0.06%
(resigned on 4 July 2022)
gl|= BEREAA
(R20224 7 A 4 HEFHT)
Ma Minghui Beneficial owner 0 0
FSHRE BEREAA
Wang Hao Beneficial owner 150,000 (L) 0.01%
T2 EmEAA
Zhao Zhongqiu Beneficial owner 0 0
A BEREAA
Zhang Lei Beneficial owner 3,000,000 (L) 0.05%
RE BEREAA
Notes: Htat -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1) FRLIRERZEEFLFNTE -
2) Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,597,531,923 @) REEEXEMFTEORSG
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and EF EEBERAAEFE
976,532,771 Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, 2,597,531,923 (% fi% 15 + M %1 Al
both companies of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang AR AERIFEHE 976,532,771 %
Baohua. B - MRARIREEELE

TEME -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(if). Interest in associated corporations

Name of
Name of Director

ExpS

Associated Corporation
HEEEER

Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited

FEEE FERAERADT]

Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REE HEIBR AT

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2021, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had an
interest and/or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:

Interest of the company

Name Capacity

=L -5

Best Outlook Limited Beneficial owner

FRAERRARO EnlEAA

Neo Pioneer Limited @ Beneficial owner

MEIER AR EmBEAA

Notes:

(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

2) The letter “L" denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors are not aware of any persons, other than a Director
or chief executives of the Company, had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of

31 December 2021 are set out in Note 14 to the Financial
Statements.
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Approximate

Percentage
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RHEE REMAOB DL
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EEEHRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of
independence issued by all the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has noted that as at 31 December 2021,
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok held directorships in eight Hong Kong listed
companies (including the Company). However, the Board is of
the view that Mr. Poon would still be able to devote sufficient
time to the Board. Mr. Poon as a FCPA (Aust.), Chartered
Secretary, Executive Director of a listed company and an
experienced trainer to the securities participants and listed
company management keeping himself abreast of the latest
governance trends of the companies listed in HK by attend
seminar and self-studying of related articles with over 80 hours
in 2021 and has strong experience in corporate governance and
is familiar with management of Hong Kong listed companies.
During the year 2021, based on the attendance record in the
meetings of the Company, Mr. Poon has participated in all
Board meetings and has good communication with the Board
and other independent non-executive Directors and performs
his obligations and responsibility gives impartial advice and
suggestion as an independent non-executive Director.

The Board of Directors was satisfied with the independent
status of all the independent non-executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering

and use of proceeds” under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in
the responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing
Rules regarding the provision of advances by the Company to
an entity.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
in the past five years is set out on page 232 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the
Articles of Association of the Company or the ordinance of
Cayman Islands, stipulating that any new shares shall be
offered according to the respective shareholding of the existing
shareholders of the Company when new shares are issued by
the Company.

TAX RELIEF
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief to which

shareholders the Company are entitled by reason of their
holdings of the Company'’s securities.
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EEEHRE

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Group maintained adequate public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 20 December 2021 as KPMG and the Company could not
reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the annual
audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee,
has resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Hong Kong”) as the new auditor of the Company with effect
from 20 December 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of KPMG.

Afterwards Moore Hong Kong has resigned with effect from
17 June 2022 for the impact of the prevention and control
policies in response to the recent resurgence of COVID-19
epidemic in both Hong Kong and mainland China on the
Company’s financial reporting and auditing procedures. The
Company then has approved the appointment of KPMG as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 30 June 2022 and
to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of the
Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

17 October 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report IR

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 231, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEEMRE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Recognition of construction contract revenue
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and

HARETER

ARETFHEREESHERHLE - R
RERYPEHPBHRERNBARREEN
FH GUEHAREESEBRAMM
BHRALBABRBETREN - BF T
Y ELERREHEBNER -

BESREKAER
DR E GRS HEZ N T4 KRBT 200 89 &

the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged in the
design, production and installation of
curtain wall systems for commercial
buildings and high-end residential
buildings. The Group normally enters
into construction contracts with main
contractors or real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively
overtime using input method based
on the proportion of total contract
costs incurred at the end of reporting
period compared to the estimated
total budgeted contract costs to
complete the contract when control
of the goods or service is transferred
to the customer.

The measurement of the revenue
therefore relies on estimations of total
budgeted contract costs. Changes
to estimated total budgeted contract
costs could give rise to material
variances in the amount of revenue
recognised.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of construction contract
revenue included the following:

*  assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

e scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a sample
basis, and assessing whether these
key clauses had been appropriately
reflected in the estimation of total
budgeted contract costs applied in
revenue recognition;

o challenging the Group’s estimates
of budgeted costs to complete
the contract on a sample basis by
considering the Group’s historical
records of gross profit margins for
similar contracts;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i). (continued)

B 2B E @)

RREZER(E)

BESRBARR (&)
BRIE G EBXM T4 KM ZF200) 89 &
K o (&)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the recognition of
construction contract revenue as a
key audit matter because there is a
high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in estimating
total budgeted contract costs and the
amount of revenue to be recognised
by the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our

audit

assessing whether costs incurred
were accounted for in the appropriate
period and comparing costs incurred
during the current period to purchase
invoices and other relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis;

performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated
total budgeted contract costs, the
costs incurred to date and the agreed
contract price;

obtaining the progress measurement
report and comparing the progress to
the percentage of completion, on a
sample basis; and

assessing the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and

trade receivables

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and trade
receivables are mainly arising from
the Group’s construction contract
business. As at 31 December 2021,
the aggregate amount of contract
assets and trade receivables totalled
RMB3.1 billion.

The Group measures loss allowances
on contract assets and trade
receivables for different group of
customers, with the assistance of
external specialist, at amounts equal
to lifetime expected credit losses
(the “ECL”) using provision
matrix which involved significant
management judgement, including
the determination of provision rate for
each age group /category of contract
assets and trade receivables and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

We identified the ECL allowances for
contract assets and trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of
the significant balances at the end
of the reporting period and because
the recognition of ECL allowances is
inherently subjective and requires the
exercise of significant management
judgement.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL
allowances for contract assets and trade
receivables included the following:

*  assessing the design and implementation
of key internal controls over the credit
control and estimation of the ECL
allowances;

e evaluating the Group’s policy for
estimating the ECL allowances with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standard;

* assessing the appropriateness of
management’s loss allowances by
examining the information used by
management to derive such provision
rates, and evaluating whether the
provision rates are appropriately
applied in the ECL model;

e assessing whether items in the
ageing report were categorised
appropriately for contract assets and
trade receivables by comparing a
sample of individual items with the
underlying documentation;

e evaluating the independence,
competence and experience of
the external specialist engaged by
management;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BB ENRE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and
trade receivables (continued)

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i). (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our
The Key Audit Matter audit

* involving our internal specialists to
evaluate the appropriateness of
model used by the external specialist
to estimate the ECL allowances
with references to the prevailing
accounting standards and challenging
the key assumptions adopted; and

* assessing the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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I Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEEMRE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BEETHM T S I RRAENSE

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ()

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise EIRE (CEBETER]) E17ETBE
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism hEEERTEEAE RIS TEEE
throughout the audit. We also: SEREE o BEIN -

78

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement —

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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I Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

1B BT RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT REE BT S ERRAENER
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ()

(continued)

”

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HERB I ZBARENETFEEERA
independent auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum. ERE

o
=0

$ m

KPMG EFHETTMEBA
Certified Public Accountants HRET AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building EBFIR

10 Chater Road BITE R

Central, Hong Kong RKFRENE

17 October 2022 202210 A17 H
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Expected credit losses of financial
and contract assets and
other receivables

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company

Loss per share (RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 89 to 231 form part of these financial %
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders Z—
of the Company for the year are set out in Note 26(b). ES

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”

BOHERER

)) For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AARE (TARE ) BB #HZE2021F12 A31 BILFE
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARBETIT
PN 4 3,055,262 2,735,572
SHE A (2,629,465) (2,283,778)
ER 425,797 451,794
H A 5 50,788 39,869
SHE &M (71,949) (77,233)
THAX (363,706) (454,927)
CREENAREENR
E b e 2 TEEAE Bk
(879,704) (322,583)
REEE (838,774) (363,080)
LR DN 6(a) (102,860) (227,642)
BiAIE 18 (941,634) (590,722)
FriS i 7 (54,195) (99,903)
ERBEUIEFAATRE
(995,829) (690,625)
BREBE(AR%ESD)
— EARNEE 10 (16.04) (11.12)
F8OBEZEF231 B2 A ETEIRE
5 o rEHZSA AR F AR EFS
AT EE 26(b) °

SRS ERPRERARAE
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B Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EffEERAEMEEKER

82

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBREBEN)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

[tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on

translation of financial
statements

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

The notes on pages 89 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31 BILFE

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARKTT
FREE (995,829)  (690,625)
FREMmEEEE (BRBR
EFPERER)
HigAsmo HEEmmIEE
— B mRBE R E K ERE
47,075 59,648
FREMSE K
47,075 59,648
FAZHEHKRREEE
A2 EFARATRR
(948,754)  (630,977)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
& BF B B AR R 3R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2021
(AARBERERM) 12021512431 H
2021 2020

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥TR AR¥ETTT

Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BRE Rkt 11 313,176 356,711
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 12 221,034 237,738
Investment properties HEYE 13 33,106 34,954
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 24(c) 349,623 370,984
916,939 1,000,387
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract FEMEMER
costs B AR 15 432,070 366,411
Contract assets EREE 16(a) 1,580,502 1,840,107
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RN R R R 17 1,583,507 2,539,171
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRK
other receivables H b UL 3R 18 588,329 617,786
Restricted deposits PR 1) M A7 3K 19(a) 1,394,784 1,504,041
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEY 19(a) 284,219 508,565
5,863,411 7,376,081
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B EMNA L EMNER 20 1,824,425 2,060,752
Contract liabilities aREE 16(b) 514,899 566,515
Accrued expenses and FERTF 2 SR AL M S 5K
other payables 21 1,870,021 2,097,872
Bank loans IRITER 22(a) 560,000 699,200
Income tax payable FERTPR1S L 24(a) 241,356 212,960
Provision for warranties RIE B 25 38,973 48,773
5,049,674 5,686,072
Net current assets RBEEFE 813,737 1,690,009
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERABEE 1,730,676 2,690,396

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

84

B OB AR SR R ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2021
(AARBREBRL) RH2021F12H31H

Non-current liabilities FREEME
Bank loans RITER
Lease liabilities HEAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Provision for warranties RERE

NET ASSETS BEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE
Share capital &7
Reserves s

TOTAL EQUITY HRES

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

17 October 2022.

Kang Baohua
REE
Director (Chairman)

EF(ZE)

The notes on pages 89 to 231 form part of these financial
statements.
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2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥T ARETTT
22(b) 390,000 400,000
23 2,553 4,215
24(c) — 404
25 186,125 185,025
578,678 589,644
1,151,998 2,100,752

26
519,723 519,723
632,275 1,581,029
1,151,998 2,100,752

BEEEN2022410 A 17 B #t & R IZHE T

%o
Wang Hao
EL
Director
EFE
%
Z—EBD e



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity IR
B EREE R

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2021
(AARBRERN) HZE2021F12A31 BIEFE

Shares
held under
share PRC
Share Share award Other statutory ~ Exchange Retained
capital premium scheme reserve reserves resernve profits Total
RER(R
LERE] il

Rx  ROEE  BERG  EbEE  iTEE  EXGBE  REHE a3t
RMBIOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMB000
ARETTE ARETR ARETT AR%ETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 26(c)) ~ (Note 26(a)) (Note 26(a)i}) (Note 26(a)ii) (Note 26(d)(i) (Note 26(c)i)

(Wit 261) (Wt 260 (Wezzely) (Wetzeifi) (Ht2eey) (Hit26))

Balance at 1 January 2020 72020518 1H
it 519,723 574,047 (210) 55,786 435,901 (83,787) 1230235 2,731,695

Changes in equity for 2020: 20205 2 EH % :

Loss for the year EREiE - = = = = = (690,625) (690,625)
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef1 2 il - - - - - 59,648 = 50,648
Total comprehensive income ~ 2ANZEE - - - - - 59,648 (690,625 (630,977)

Termination of the Share ROREEA L
Award Scheme - - 210 - - - (176) 34

Balance at 31 December 120206125 31R
2020 it 519,723 574,047 = 55,786 435,901 (24139 539,434 2,100,752
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Il Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
SO EREE R @

86

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBREBEN)

Balance at 1 January 2021

Changes in equity for 2021:

Loss for the year
Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021 120215128318

R2021%1A1R
28

0215 BRAE -

FRER
Afp2EE

2EUELE

PA i

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31 BILFE

The notes on pages 89 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Retained
PRC profits/
Share Share Other statutory Exchange (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses) Total
HE REAE
s Rt Efbfite EEHE ENGE /(BHER) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETn  ARMTrR  AR%Tz  AR%MTr  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 26(c))  (Note 26(d)(i)) (Note 26(c)(iii)) (Note 26(d)(iv)) ~(Note 26(d)(v)
(W26(c)  (H2260)) (K226 (HE26()iv) (B 26(d))
519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 (24,139) 530,434 2,100,752
- - = - - (995,829) (995,829)
- - - - 41,075 - 41,075
- - - - 41,075 (995,829) (948,754)
519,728 574,047 55,786 435,901 22,936 (456,395) 1,151,998
E.OEZEF 21 B MFARUEVBERE
Z—H#B5 °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement IR
EHEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AARBRERN) HZE2021F12A31 BIEFE
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ikz3 AR%T T ARBTIT
Operating activities RESEE
Loss before taxation GRS (941,634) (590,722)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation e KB g 6(c) 69,089 71,456
Interest income MEUTA 6(a) (22,966) (31,202)
Borrowing costs BB A 6(a) 131,164 174,193
Net gain on disposal of property, LEWE BEK
plant and equipment Bl Eay= 5 (16,358) (43)
Changes in working capital: LEECEE)
Increase in inventories and other FEREAME RIS
contract costs (569,175) (44,410)
Decrease in contract assets ERIEBERD 260,778 728,035
Decrease in trade and bills B 5 MG K e R = R
receivables 999,049 379,148
Decrease in deposits, prepayments &% -~ AT
and other receivables H i e W FOR 107,711 65,534
Decrease in trade and bills payables & 5 &1 2k & -+ 2= 45 36 > (252,460) (458,253)
Decrease in contract liabilities aRAaERD (51,616) (256,672)
(Decrease)/increase in accrued FEET RS R E At FE 15 3R
expenses and other payables (R A) /18 (88,757) 5,742
Decrease in provision for warranties R 1& & @ 2 (580) (16,798)
Cash generated from operations KERERS 134,245 26,008
Income tax paid B AETH 24(a) (4,509) (15,949)
Income tax refunded FriS iR 5K 24(a) 4,385 150
Net cash generated from RETFHRMBREELSFHE
operating activities 134,121 10,209

SRS ERPRERARAE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHEESRER @

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBREBEN)

Investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and land
use rights

Net (payments for)/proceeds from
other time deposits

Interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans
and other borrowings
Proceeds from sale of shares under
share award scheme
Repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings
Net proceeds/(payments) for
restricted deposits to secure
bank loans and other borrowings
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Borrowing costs paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31 BILFE

REEH
BEWE - BB RREBNR

HEWE - BERRER
THb{E R Z PRI 3R

HAth & B H0F

(XH) Fissk
EHFE

REZBHHREBREFR

BMEED

IR IRTT R EABEFRATER
BB REE L E

B A7 P 155K
EERRITERLEMER

RIRITE R R E M AR

PRHIMFRORMER ()

ENHEER S 2 EAH
ENHAERS 2 H SR
ENEERAR

BMETBHAAREFR

RERREEBEURLFR

R1A1BNRER

REeEEY

IEERBHHNTE

R12A831BENESE
RESEEY

The notes on pages 89 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2021 2020

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat AR¥ TR ARBTIT
(9,104) (8,764)

46,461 102,075

(3,000) 211,116

21,062 18,760

55,419 323,187

19(b) 2,404,824 3,709,902
— 34

19(b) (2,696,082) (3,426,768)
34,962 (454,550)

19(b) (28,951) (35,057)
19(b) (597) (1,710)
19(b) (120,800) (167,777)
(406,644) (375,926)

(217,104) (42,530)

19(a) 508,565 559,265
(7,242) (8,170)

19(a) 284,219 508,565




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February

2010 as an exempted company with limited liability

under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of

1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman

Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial

statements of the Company comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are the design,

procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain

wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and related Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”). These financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

1

BOFB BRI EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRHHEAIN - UARERE)
DREH

BRARBEZERAERAG(AQF])
R 20102 A 26 HIREFASHER
RIAZE 22 (1961 F 5 =550
aRE RIEFT) e S B Skt sz
BEHRRERAT o AR BN
20115 R17T B EBBHER S
BRARI (TR £ o XAF]
EoREREE b A=W N/NCI DN )
BAE (5 [ AEE])HER - K
SENFEXB AR KB 4
E HERTEEBRESR o

BEAREFBE
(@) AR

It B RS R TR B FT B 1
FA # B B B 7 R 5 22 R (TR
BRETISmEER ) HES
BREERR S EREE
2 ((ERgTtEAESE])
M5 B9 B A5 33 R (8 B B B B
&R - EER SR
(BB EsHER ) REER
Bmms o Lt EMB®KRIT
HEBBRAHEOIHERTE
R FEAE EmAA( £
MR A &0 E ARG -
REBMBRAZERNGTHUR
ZATR BTt o

HER gt AR =S C B
=T BRE %S ] 6 E
R MEEABRAKEE
Al e A HIM B R AR AT 12
BRM - BRERZFER
£ 1875 A A B PR B 7% s 5 2
AIFTSIBE ml &5t BAE AT
ST HREREBHE RN I
EMEmE - AHEENET
RHFFE2(C) °
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

90

(BB ERBEIN - AARBARER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for derivative financial instruments
which are stated at their fair values (see Note
2(e))-

The Company has its functional currency in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s
operation are conducted by the subsidiaries
of the Group in mainland China in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi.

The Group had incurred a net loss of
RMB995,829,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB690,625,000).
Notwithstanding the above, based on a cash flow
forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending
31 December 2022 prepared by the management,
which has taken into account the unutilised bank
facilities, the expected renewal of the short-
term loans upon maturity, the financial support
committed by Mr. Kang Bachua (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) and a company under his control,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will have adequate funds to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 BEXREHEK(E)

()

M RERNRREE (&)

M # R D R BFR B TS R
HR—HRE - HAEER
BELXERXERKRE
E- A WARHAXHES
B A B RR
& o L FAFT KRR E&R
BREER R ZHEMBAE
ZEATBRAENRES
B HEREXIELBRAT
A B MRS HEE
=N B ERRE A Y HI T &
%o BRERAIRERLEF A
AR -

It F b5 MBI RER TR
BEERRN - SHEFTAE
R Ty EHEFHE L E RTHIR
BR(HZET EZEZY
[8) S FME AT HARE AR R AR
HER (W BT EE R MR
REAM) ©

ERERNEABRRM GRS
RIS AT E LSRR &
At TR I ZERRAE
R B HFE TR EES A

513 -
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

92

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBERAIN  UARERBLL)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

o Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

° Amendments to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current accounting period have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 BEXREHEK(E)

(IEYNCIVSE 2 e 5

P I8 2~ 7] A R AN SR R L A
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

94

(B=EEHAI -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

AARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Any equity interests
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see Note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(j)(ii)). The depreciation policy is the
same as that of property, plant and equipment
(see Note 2(g)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in Note
2()(iv).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see
Note 2(v)).

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 BEXREHEK(E)
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

96

(B>

2

BN

AARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other 5 years

equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the estimated useful life of
an asset and its residual value are reviewed
annually. No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development

activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

NARBERER)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

98

(B=EEHAI -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(j)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)
() As a lessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(t)(v)).
Any difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(1)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease
term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-
term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

0)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Credit

As a lessor (continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(t)(iv).

losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash on
hand and in bank, trade receivables
and deposits and other receivables);
and

— contract assets as defined in IFRS
15 (see Note 2(l).

Derivative financial instruments measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2
(continued)
0]

102 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade
receivables, deposits and other
receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.
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(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

U

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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(B>

2

BN

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is

taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition:

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credlit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(t)(v) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

= significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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2

(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

U

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

= right-of-use assets;

— investment property; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
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(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can
be done on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) IR

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )
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(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Inventories and other contract costs
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in
the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Inventories include the cost of raw
materials waiting to be assigned to specific
construction contracts. The cost of
inventories includes design costs, costs of
purchase, direct labour, other direct costs
and production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are assigned to specific
construction contracts, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the
related revenue is recognised.
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2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

K

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(1)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the year the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(k)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs
of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are
expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when
incurred.

Annual Report 2021

2

BEREHEE (&)

(K)

FENEMERMKA (&)

()

(i)

7R (&)

EAMBRTFEER &
BRENEBNRAE
TR EETIRE h
BMRELEBRNEFE
AIERBF A
T B OB A (AT B )
SRTINERBE R
FENERSEHER
RAXHEESEN
FRL ©

H A R

Hib & RIK ARG
P& RMILE KA
SEITEFERBK
N HWEBEREA
FE (RMEE20)()

HiS A A B EKA
RAEERBRGEP
BRIMESL « fWAKEE
REAaRAMISESL
B A A (Bl a0 35 & 5K
ERE) - MABK

a5 B B AN A FE 2R 2R e
SHIARER - MK
BEIAT Y E - F A
RIH) G B AR E L
BEeEAL MEA
Rl E) B AR A E &
RERIL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)
(ii) Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (i)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract
costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates
is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in Note 2(t).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
Note 2(1)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at
their transaction price. Trade receivables that
contain a significant financing component and
other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i).
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

BN

AARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at

invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the
cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market.
The net consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “Shares held under share
award scheme” and deducted from equity.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(1)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected
to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised
for the reimbursement is limited to the
carrying amount of the provision.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(8)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts (continued)

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. Provisions for onerous
contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost
of continuing with the contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:
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2

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(1)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by
the Group as a construction contract when
the contract relates to work on curtain
wall under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be reasonably measured,
revenue from the contract is recognised
progressively over time using the cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total contract costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion
or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in
making these estimates, such that revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EAEHEE (&)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

(1)

(i)

(i)

Construction contracts (continued)

If at any time the costs to complete the
contract are estimated to exceed the
remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(s)(ii).

Service income

Service income from the rendering of
services is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

Sale of materials

Sale of materials is recognised when the
materials are delivered to the location
designated by the customer and the
control of the materials transferred to
the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue from sale of materials
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts.
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2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a
functional currency other than RMB, the Group’s
presentation currency, are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(W)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale
if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset is
available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current assets
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iif) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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(RBERAIN  UARERBLL)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(X) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(V) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

v)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(i)

(i

Revenue recognition

As explained in accounting policy Note 2(t),
revenue from construction contracts is recognised
over time. Such revenue and profit recognition on
incomplete projects is dependent on estimating
the total budgeted contract costs of the contract,
as well as the contract costs incurred to date.
The actual outcomes in the terms of total cost
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in the future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

Impairment of receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are
reviewed by management at the end of each
reporting period to determine the expected
credit losses. The management bases the
estimates on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and
current ability and willingness to pay, taking into
account the financial position of the customers
and the macroeconomic environment in which the
customers operate. The credit assessments also
consider the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any unresolved
lawsuits or contentious matters with customers.
If the financial conditions of the customers and/
or the macroeconomic environment of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to pay, additional impairment provision
would be required.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Warranty provisions

As explained in Note 25, the Group makes
provisions under the warranties it gives on
construction of curtain wall systems contracts,
taking into account the Group’s recent claim
experience. As the curtain wall systems required
by customers become more complex, the actual
payment incurred for warranties provided may
be different from that estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect profit or loss
in future years.

Taxation

Determining tax provision involves judgement on
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
evaluates tax implication of transactions and tax
provision are set up accordingly. Where the final
tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the tax provision in
the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilised. In determining the
amount of deferred tax assets to be recognised,
significant judgement is required relating to the
timing and level of future taxable profits, after
taking into account future tax planning strategies.
The amount of deferred tax assets recognised at
future dates are adjusted if there are significant
changes from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
land use rights may not be fully recoverable, these
assets are tested for impairment in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of non-
current assets as described in Note 2(j)(ii) and
the recoverable amount of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and land use rights was
calculated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and the value in use.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions related to fair value
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the recoverable
amount of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
design, procurement, production, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems. Further details
regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in Note 4(b).

(1) Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue represents contract revenue
derived from the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems. Disaggregation of revenue
from contracts with customers within the
scope of IFRS 15 by timing of revenue
recognition is as follows:

Over time R—ERER
Point in time A 5 118 By e B

Disaggregation of revenue by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 4(b)(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(1)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified.
There was no customer with transactions
that exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
under the Group’s existing contracts is
RMB7,448.2 million (2020: RMB8,039.6
million). This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future
from construction contracts entered into by
the customers with the Group. The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in
future when or as the work is completed,
which is expected to occur over the next
48 months (2020: 48 months).

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
amount of the expected transaction price
of the potential contracts (including tax) of
which the Group has won the bidding is
RMB5,205.3 million (2020: RMB3,949.9
million).
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(@)

142 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Revenue (continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date. (continued)

The above amounts do not include any
amounts of completion bonuses that the
Group may earn in the future by meeting
the conditions set out in the Group’s
construction contracts with customers,
unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the
conditions for earning those bonuses.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by
geographical locations of the construction
contracts in a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. The Group has
presented the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

o Domestic: comprises construction
contracts carried out in the mainland
China.

o Overseas: comprises construction

contracts carried out outside of the
mainland China.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

4 BARSBEE ()

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(1)

Segment results

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment
result is “adjusted gross profit” (i.e. gross
profit after impairment losses for financial
assets and contract assets).

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to revenue generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments. No significant inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling
and administrative expenses, impairment
losses for other financial assets and
finance costs, are not measured under
individual segments.

The Group’s most senior executive
management monitor the Group’s assets
and liabilities as a whole, accordingly, no
segment assets and liabilities information
is presented.
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FLaT 2 BRIRER
D ERE D B IR M
5 ARESSTR
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EEE AR A E
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDERE (&)
(continued)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) )  DEHREE)
(i) Segment results (continued) () PDEFREE ()

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out

& £ 2021 F 2020
F12A31BILFE -
FHEER‘RTAEER
SITHEEAE MUY
B & R & a1 (S 2 50k
BEAREE A RRD
EEREIIT o

2021
Overseas Total
isB) et

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR

1,594,411 3,055,262

112,736 (422,043)
2020

Overseas Total

BN BT

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBETIT AR®TT

1,498,805 2,735,572

below.
Domestic
A
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Revenue from external RENMEBEFH
customers and reportable WA R T ER $R
segment revenue DU A 1,460,851
Reportable segment adjusted T F $} 2 2B 48
gross (loss)/profit RE(ES)
ER (534,779)
Domestic
"
RMB’000
ARETTT
Revenue from external RENMEBEFH
customers and reportable Lo
segment revenue maIBWA 1,236,767
Reportable segment adjusted T ¥% 2 B
gross profit KAZEER 116,490

41,748 158,238
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(o)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit

or loss

Reportable segment
adjusted gross

(loss)/profit

Other income

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Expected credit losses
of other financial assets
and other receivables

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

QEX TR T

(E8) /E7

H WA
HEER
TTRFAX
HbemEER
Hofth YR Y
EHERER
BhE A

A0 B 18

E2S
=

(B=E AN -

4 WAR D B®RE (&)

I

IAARME R EAL)

DEpFRE (&)
(i) A] 2 #5755/ 2 #]
3

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
(422,043) 158,238
50,788 39,869
(71,949) (77,233)
(363,706)  (454,927)
(31,864) (29,027)
(102,860)  (227,642)
(941,634)  (590,722)
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following tables set out information
about the geographical location of the
Group’s revenue from external customers.

The geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the

construction contracts are carried out.

Disaggregated by
geographical location
of customers

Mainland China

United Kingdom

United States of America
Australia

Others

BREPHIBUESS

R E A

RE
ENRERE
M
Hity

Vast majority of the Group’s non-current

assets are located in the mainland

China. As such, geographical analysis

of the Group’s non-current assets is not

presented.

146 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(i)  HFEEEF

TREINEHEAEE
KEINBEFERA
Ko BRHMIBAGE
DRBEITEEAR
BV E 7 o

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT
1,460,851 1,236,767

621,740 407,847
224,047 431,733
151,001 159,429
597,623 499,796
1,594,411 1,498,805
3,055,262 2,735,572
AEEREDIER
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EHit - SEERBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

OTHER INCOME 5 HA
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Government grants BT 8 By 21,455 28,648
Rental income from investment property #&%& ¥ % 2 & WA 9,266 8,463
Rental income from operating leases,  REMERINNKETHE
other than those relating to Z e WA
investment property 265 144
Net income from provision of repairs RS RIRE ARTE ) FHA
and maintenance services 2,791 2,506
Net gain from sale of scrap materials SHE BRZEM B R F U as 653 65
Net gain on disposal of property, plant — HEWE - FE M&E R
and equipment and land use rights - Hb (AR F M s 16,358 43
50,788 39,869

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

148

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

(a) Finance costs:

Interest on borrowings BEFE

Interest on lease liabilities MEBENE (A5 19(0b))
(Note 19(b))

Bank charges and other finance $R1TFEE & E M ghE A

costs
Total borrowing costs REEKA
Interest income MEMA
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE E5 18 % 5
Net gain on forward foreign RERINE & A as FER

exchange contracts

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

BB

BRI BT IR (GEA) AT &
RIS

(@) BB
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
116,387 151,397

597 1,710

14,180 21,086

131,164 174,193
(22,966) (81,202)
61,697 144,509

(67,035) (69,858)

102,860 227,642

R E 22021 F K 20204 12
A31HIEFETEEBEKA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(o)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHER - AR BEN)
6  BAIEE(E)

Staff costst: (o) B TR :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
Salaries, wages and other Fe - LENMREMET
benefits 422,222 551,599
Contributions to defined M) 5B A FUR R ET &I 51
contribution retirement plans 27,564 32,657
449,786 584,256

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at rates ranging from 13% to 16%
(2020: from 13% to 16%) of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries
are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the average salaries
level in the PRC, from the above mentioned
retirement schemes at their normal retirement
age. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC have been
granted certain exemption on the contribution
to defined contribution retirement plans by local
government authority as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic for the period from February 2020 to
December 2020. In 2021, the local government
authorities did not grant such exemption.

REERFEKZHHTE R
AIHYE B R b 77 BT # 8
EEHNRERICRIKEF G
g Bt - PEEARZA
ZREEELRH S 183% £16%
(20204F : 13% 2= 16%) [A) 7%
ZEr B - REIMTE A A
EERERERRKFR
KA R DR E=A
RHREFEEHSKFEESL
FREMERAREN EHEE
2020%F12 A31HILFERA -
B 20209 2 A = 20204F
12 A #i M B COVID-19 * 7E
FR BRI R BT B A RIS T
175 R & B W 5 E K
RIRFHEIHFH —ERE
2021 5F - B M BT R
HEZF L o
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

150

(B=EEHAI -

6

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

AARE R EAL)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(o)

Staff costs*: (continued)

The employees of overseas subsidiaries of
the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the
respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the respective schemes at rates stipulated by the
relevant rules and regulations of the respective
jurisdictions.

In addition, certain qualified employees of
overseas subsidiaries also participate in defined
benefit retirement plan. The subsidiary’s payment
obligation in the future under such plan are
discounted and recognised as liabilities, deducted
by the related plan assets, presented in other
payables in the statement of financial position.

Contributions to these retirement plans vest
immediately. There are no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of distribution. The Group does not
have any further material obligations for payments
of other retirement benefits beyond the above
annual contributions.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items:

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHER - AR BEN)
6  BAIEE(E)

(© HIEE -

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Depreciation and amortisation* 78 K # &
— owned property, plant — BBEWE - BE K&
and equipment (Note 11) (HfaE11) 27,905 29,828
— right-of-use assets (Note 12) — {EREEE (KiF12) 39,336 40,498
— investment properties — EWE (Kt 13)

(Note 13) 1,848 1,130
Auditors’ remuneration 2 25 Al 2 B 10,576 9,598
Research and development I B A A #

costs* 89,171 109,645

Increase in provision for RISE B (B 5 25)
warranties* (Note 25) 52,217 57,246
Cost of inventories* (Note 15(a)) TF &M A* (K1t 15(a)) 2,629,465 2,283,778
© Cost of inventories includes RMB301.8 million 2 #HZE2021F12 A31H
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: IEFEFEXRABIEE

RMB316.8 million), relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses,
research and development costs and provision
for warranties, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

TR - #TE R GHF
X KA RARISE
BEHEBAOHKAARKE
301.8 & & st (2020 :
AR¥3168EETT)
i b st sk 7 B 7 6(0) &9
SENTAEBEEN
ErRASA -
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEREIN « UAREEABA)
7 INCOME TAX 7 Fri8#i

(a)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit (@) AHERRARFTENE
or loss represents:

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

Current tax (Note 24(a)): BVEAFR IE (47 2F 24(a)) -
— provision for corporate — BREAVAERREX
income tax in respective FriS i
jurisdictions 34,345 6,827
Deferred tax (Note 24(b)): EAEFIIR (M1 5F 24(b)) :
— origination and reversal — EREFENE S REE
of temporary differences 19,850 93,076

54,195 99,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(o)

7

Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

LLoss before taxation

Expected tax on profit/(loss)
before taxation, calculated
at the rates applicable in the
jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv))

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of utilisation of prior
years’ unused tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses
and deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Tax effect of reversal of
recognised deferred tax

Tax concessions and effect
of changes of tax rate
(Note (v))

Income tax

Notes:

T A B 18

1248 #8 F) A e [ 8 A AR R
STEMBAAE, (BE)
FEHRFL 1B
CHTEE (), (i), (i) % (iv))

TRAIHRAXNRBEE

BRERMAEREEFE
AP AVIEERD
MBEE

AERARBATIARE IR
DA%

FERIR LT IR E E B B Y
B E

REVERINE RS A
(Hrat (W)

Fris®t

(i) The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Company and the subsidiaries of
the Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not
have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December

2021 (2020: RMBNIl).

(BBHEPI - UARBARBR)
Fr8#i (&)
(b) AR SR E AR R E
Y2 ETESIERHER -
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT
(941,634)  (590,722)
(233,538)  (144,747)
20,678 11,956
(29,053) (2,440)
302,253 37,308
7,179 167,683
(13,324) 30,143
54,195 99,903
st
) AAFRAEBRE S
SRS B A TR

#H 22021412 H31H
IEFEZA1716.5%(2020
F:16.5%) &) B X &
MEBNEH - ARA
RAl RAEEMRERE T
1A Sz B T B A Bl A AR
£2021F12A31H8 1t
FEBEARREEF
FHA RS - i
W TR BB G T B
#H(2020F : ARBZT
JL) ©
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR RBLL)
INCOME TAX (continued)

154

(B=EEHAI -

7

(o)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

(ii)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, respectively, are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax
rate of 256% for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated
in jurisdictions other than the PRC (including
Hong Kong), the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, are subject to income tax rates
ranging from 8.5% to 30% for the year ended
31 December 2021 pursuant to the rules and
regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2020: 8.5% to 30%).

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the
tax bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with
advanced and new technologies for the period
from the calendar years from 2020 to 2022 and
therefore enjoys a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: 15%). In addition,
this subsidiary is entitled to an additional 100%
tax deduction to its assessable profits (2020:
75%) in respect of the qualified research and
development costs incurred in the PRC.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

(B=E AN -

8 EEMSE

BIEEERRHEHI 5 383(1) & kA
Al (EEEEFER)ROIE =

IAARME R EAL)

#B

MEBENEEMSFFIFNT

2021
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
21 RIRGHE
ESHe RENEN (33 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARBT T ARETR
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Kang Baohua REELE - - = =
Mr. Liu Futao A/B/ELE - 853 33 886
Mr. Zhao Zhongqju BEREE - 719 33 752
Mr. Ma Minghui SHELE - 536 33 569
Mr. Wang Hao IREAE - 346 33 379
Mr. Zhang Lei KR AE - 950 33 983
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERBELE 208 - - 208
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond AREREE 208 - - 208
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny 2} ki 208 - - 208
624 3,404 165 4,193
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B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERAT

Executive Directors
Mr. Kang Baohua
Mr. Li Hongren
(resigned on 22 July 2020)

Mr. Liu Futao
Mr. Zhao Zhongaiu
(appointed on 22 July 2020)

Mr. Ma Minghui
Mr. Wang Hao
Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

ION (continued) 8 EEMe ()
2020
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
Er =t RINGTEI
£ ik REMEA X st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTFT
HTES
REERSE - - - -
FHRARE
(R2020F
7522 HEHF) - 4,663 11 4,674
AEELE - 5,268 23 5,291
HANEE
(R2020%F
7822 BZF) - 3,878 13 3,891
SHELE - 2,356 23 2,379
IR%EE - 479 23 502
RE A — - - -
BYFHTES
ARRE LA 222 - - 202
HERREE 222 - - 202
FHERE 222 - - 202
666 16,644 93 17,403

The emoluments of Mr. Kang Baohua and Mr. Zhang

Lei were borne by companies under the control of

the Controlling Shareholder during the year ended

31 December 2020, during the year ended 31 December

2021, the emoluments of Mr. Zhang Lei were borne by

the Group.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
(2020: four) of them are directors of the Company. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other five
(2020: one) individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #r& - 284 & B ¥1E 7
Discretionary bonuses 1B TEAT
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEIH R

The emoluments of the five (2020: one) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

(In HK$) (%)

1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 & 2,000,000
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001 Z 3,000,000

REHMAL

hamEmFMALH - & A (2020
FOR)RARRESE - AftA%
AL (20205 : —%) v FrBARER N

™

2021
RMB’000

2020
RMB’000

AR®TR ARETRT

5,447 1,729

3,339 321

1,433 361

10,219 2,411

h% (20204 : —&) &EEFMAL
RSB F LA T 6 E

2021 2020

1 —

1 —

3 1
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAI -

AARE R EAL)

10 LOSS PER SHARE 10

(@)

158

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basic loss per share

The basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2021 is calculated based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB995.8 million (2020:
RMB690.6 million) and the weighted average
of 6,208,734,000 ordinary shares (2020:
6,208,396,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2021, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares M1 A1 BETAEER
at 1 January
Effect of termination of the Share A% {D 82BN B4R IEH R &

Award Scheme

K12 A31 A E@ER
AN 8

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares
at 31 December

Diluted loss per share
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020. Hence, the diluted loss per share is the
same as basic loss per share.

Annual Report 2021

BRER

@)

BRREAREER

HZE2021F12 A31 8 IEF
EERERBEREARRR
IR EEEEARK95.88
BT (20204 : AR¥690.6
BET) RRAHZE2021 F
12 431 BIEFEBEITINE
F15206,208,734,000 A% & iE
B% (2020 £ : 6,208,396,000
M BAR) ST ERT ¢

LB INE T I9E
2021 2020
No. of No. of
shares shares
’000 ’000
TR TA%
6,208,734 6,208,147
- 249
6,208,734 6,208,396

i EEE

7L E 2021 FF K 2020 F 12
A1 BIEFEE#EA BT
SERUE R AR D BEATIESN ©
It SREEEEEGRE
ETEER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

At 1 January 2020

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to investment property
(Note 13)

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2021

(BB AR - AARBAER)
11 ¥ BERREE
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and and other
buildings equipment equipment Total
AER
BERET BERERE Hithi s Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT
BA
R®2020%1 A1R 413,069 384,682 170,268 968,019
R o 2 (397) (148) (543)
B 5,768 587 683 7,038
HE (4,593) (2,110) (7,310) (14,013)
EREARELELRE
(Hizt13) (3,999) = = (3,999)
12020412 4318
%2021%1 A 18 410,247 382,762 163,493 956,502
ERTE o 276 (184) (1,795) (1,703)
NE 9,585 85 551 10,221
HeE (31,611) (1,979) (6,459) (40,043)
#2021 €12 A31H 388,497 380,684 155,796 924,977

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
| O B 7S 3R 3R B B )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEIEHE - LAARKE BEAL)
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 11 ¥ - BERSEE(E)

Motor

Machinery vehicles

Plant and and and other
buildings equipment equipment Total

RER
BERET BBRRE HithR s At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Accumulated depreciation: 2 E
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1 318 (153,787) (279,275) (147,721) (580,783)
Exchange adjustments ERR o 2 297 150 449
Charge for the year FAME (11,652) (12,608) (5,568) (29,828)
Written back on disposals &R 591 1,723 6,253 8,567
Reclassified to investment property =N AR EYE

(Note 13) (B 13) 1,804 - - 1,804
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H

and 1 January 2021 %2021 1A1H  (163,042) (289,863) (146,886) (599,791)
Exchange adjustments P 7, 728 263 121 1,731 2,115
Charge for the year FAME (10,126) (16,032) (1,747) (27,905)
Written back on disposals HERE 7,533 1,401 4,846 13,780
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H  (165,372) (304,373) (142,056) (611,801)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31H 223,125 76,311 13,740 313,176
At 31 December 2020 7R2020%F 12 A31H 247,205 92,899 16,607 356,711
At 31 December 2021, property certificates of certain R2021F12H31H - HETHREE
properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB56.7 FEABARES6.7H B IT(20204F
million (31 December 2020: RMB77.4 million) are yet to 128318 : ARB7745E L) K
be obtained. YR ARG MEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-

of-use assets, carried at depreciated cost, by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

Cost:

At 1 January 2020

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Expiration of lease terms

Reclassified to investment property
(Note 13)

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Expiration of lease terms

Disposals

At 31 December 2021

B

202051 A18

BE 5 A2

AE

BEHR

ERRERAME
(Bt 13)

202012 A31H
%2021%F1A1H

[ 5 2H%

ANE

HEHH

&

R2021%12 A31 8

SO B RRME @
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(REERAIN  UAREFBLL)

12 ERAEEE

AEERENEERHEREEE
R BREDFE (T ERARFIR) 2440

I
Motor
Prepayment vehicles and
for land use Properties equipment
right for leased leased
own use for own use for own use Total
BAtit BA BAHE
Y SEANEN HEWE BRRRE “@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARETT
Note (i) Note (i)
Mz () Bz (i)
292,499 27,249 624 320,372
— (238) — (238)
— 31,659 89 31,748
— (26,875) — (26,875)
(3,497) — — (3,497)
289,002 31,795 713 321,510
— (1,510) — (1,510)
— 27,431 — 27,431
— (39,246) (713) (39,959
(5,917) — — (5,917)
283,085 18,470 — 301,555
TR R 22K v [ i BR 4 W)
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

162

(B=EEHAI -

AARE R EAL)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 12 ERAEEE(E)
Motor
Prepayment vehicles and
for land use Properties equipment
right for leased leased
own use for own use for own use Total
HALi# BR BRHE
ERAERMN HENE EHRRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
Note (i) Note (ii)
Hzt() Bzt (i)
Accumulated amortisation: RETE
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 H (60,088) (10,646) (234) (70,968)
Exchange adjustments SRS - 76 - 76
Charge for the year EREHE (5,953) (34,144) (401) (40,498)
Expiration of lease terms HESRm - 26,875 = 26,875
Reclassified to investment property EHEEHREME
(Note 13) (Hizt 13) 743 - - 743
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F12 A31H
and 1 January 2021 %2021F1A1RH (65,298) (17,839) (635) (83,772)
Exchange adjustments BN A - 551 - 551
Charge for the year FNEEH (5,839) (33,425) (78) (39,336)
Expiration of lease terms HEHR - 39,246 713 39,959
Written back on disposals HERE 2,077 - - 2,077
At 31 December 2021 R20214612 A31H (69,054) (11,467) - (80,521)
Net book value: BREHE
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 214,031 7,003 - 221,034
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H 223,704 13,956 78 237,738
Notes: Kzt -

(i)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Prepayment for land use right for own use represented
land use right premiums paid by the Group for land
situated in the PRC. The remaining lease terms
falls within the ranges of 35 years to 37 years. At
31 December 2021, land use right certificates of certain
land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of RMB
Nil (31 December 2020: RMB3.8 million) are yet to be
obtained. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these land use rights, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

The Group has obtained the right to use the properties
as its production plant or offices or dormitory for staff
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 8 years.

Annual Report 2021

M

(i)

B AL AETEN SRR IEAS
STyl S )
R - FIgRH S EARTESS
FEITF M - BiE2021F12
A31H ARG E L L b fFE
R L AEES - AFRE
BEAAREZEE (202045
12A31H : AR¥3.8BET) °
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FRRERISZ SR - M BRE LM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. If the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. For
existing leases as 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
any extension options therefore did not include future
lease payments during the extension periods in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group do not have leases which contains variable
lease payment.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use CREEENE
assets

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a))

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(c)
and 23, respectively. There is no lease that is not yet
commenced as at 31 December 2021.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12

HERERNE (HiE6(a)

(BSHER - AR BEN)
ERREEE (7)

FERERETESRBEREKA
HIE R — R A IEIZHE o fERI 1T
MIERT REBNKPWAREE
TR - URHEEE
EE - AEBRBERS A TG
REAABICEITETH R -
MEAEBTEEAERTEREITE
FEERE 2 - RGEERHAR A9 R 2R R
ENFTEREEREAGENTE
oo R E = 20204 12 A 31 B #
2021 F12 A1 HMIREHE &
SEEZEERERGITEEMT
g ANTEHEESEEF
RS IE BB B0 R R E A KB IE
A o

AEBERARSAEHENKNHE

& -

B ABFNHSHEMNEREE
DT -

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
39,336 40,498
597 1,710

HERSRLBELRHEEAEND
HAD MRS 2 RIS E AT & 19(c) &
28 HE2021F12A31 8 ' )8 A
HARFRAEE -

SRS ERPRERARAE

163



I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

13  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 REYH
RMB’000
AREETTT
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2020 K2020F1 A1H 40,430
Reclassified from property, plant BENBAWE  WER&E(MEF11)
and equipment (Note 11) 3,999
Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 12) ED A FEBEEE (FfiL12) 3,497
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 R2020F 12 431 2021F1 H1H
and at 31 December 2021 K 2021412 A31H 47,926
Accumulated amortisation: Z5THE
At 1 January 2020 202041818 (9,295)
Reclassified from property, plant BENBBEWE - BERFZE(HET11)
and equipment (Note 71) (1,804)
Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 12) EHD A E BEEE (K1 12) (743)
Charge for the year F N (1,130)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7K 2020F 12 431 &% 20214F1 /818 (12,972)
Charge for the year FNEEH (1,848)
At 31 December 2021 R2021412 A31 H (14,820)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2021 7K 2021412 A 31 H 33,106

At 31 December 2020 2020412 A31 H 34,954
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 6 to 8 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year —FRA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA
After 5 years hERE

The investment properties owned by the Group are
situated in the PRC. According to the property valuation
report issued by an independent qualified valuer, the
fair value under income approach of the investment
property at 31 December 2021 is RMB103.7 million
(81 December 2020: RMB104.4 million).

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

13  REYE(E)

0

AEENELEETALBERE
HEME HERAETR6ES
F o WHHBBEEBEEENEDA
BIEFREEAE - HENTE
BEFEN—R - ARBRTSE
€ - EHEB T RENEEE
K -

N 52 B8 A 2R E PR 85 USRS R K
HEEHENAENRERS B
HTEARREIRE - A0NATR ¢

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETRT ARBTT
10,190 10,100
41,479 41,598
6,843 16,913
58,512 68,611

(i)

REEHA IR E Y EERM AR
o IRBIE A R EERML AR
RS - R E W EE 2021
F12 A31 B AR BEKZE
A AR®103.7 8 £ 7t (2020
F12A31H: AR®104.48
BT e

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
14  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RBRAZRE

TRENHHARENEE  BE
SREAEATEZHMBRARER -

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

HRREaLH
Place of Particulars of The
establishment/ registered/  Group’s Held
incorporation issuedand effective  bythe Held by
Name of subsidiary and business paid-up capital interest  Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
RY/ERRL if/cafR  kEEZ  pALF HHE
WRARAR REZHE BRRARE EMEE 0 BF QKA IEEH
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry The PRC United States Dollar ('USD’) 100% - 100% Design, procurement, production, sale and
Engineering Co., Lid. i 323,298,200 installation of curtain wall systems
(‘Shenyang Yuanda)' 323298, 200570 ([%70)) Fir BB £E  BERRRERZS
EREABRIRARLA([BREA))
Yuanda (UK) Co, Lid. United Kingdom 500,000 shares 100% = 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EAREARAR i 500,000 instalaton of curtain wal systems
it BB HERZRERZR
Yuanda Australia Pty Lid. Australia 14,020,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EARAHEARAR A 14020,000% instalation of curtan wallsystems
it R 8% BEREERRZG
Yuanda USA Corporation United States of 10,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EAXERRLE America 10,000%% instalation of curtan wallsystems
3 it R A% HERRRERZS
Yuanda Aluminium Enginggring (ndla) Repubic of Indla 2,868,340 shares 100% = 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
Private Limited (*Yuanda Indla) (‘Inala’) 2883408 installation of curtain wall systems
ERERTE (R MARRAT AR AR ) it R HERZRERZR
Yuanda Europe Lid. Swiss Gonfederation 1,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EARINERAE WthA 1,000000% instalation of curtan wallsystems

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Narme of subsidiary

KEARER

PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering
EAEZIRARARAT

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd.

EXELHARDA

Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd.
EXESNTARAA

*

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and business
A/iRAT
RERHE

Republic of Indonesia
IEREZAIE

Australia
il

Australia
i

Particulars of
registered/
issued and

paid-up capital
ih/CRR
BRBARE

160,000 shares

150,000%

800,000 shares
800,000%

1 share
18

14

Proportion of ownership interest

HRRaLH
The
Group's Held
effective  bythe
interest ~ Company
r5EZ  BANE
R &E

99% =

100%

100% =

This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

The equity interests of certain immaterial subsidiaries
were held on trust by local individuals on behalf of the

Group.

Held by
subsidiaries
il |
AR

99%

100%

100%

T3k

RITBARZRE (F)

Principal activities

TERE

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
it RE AR HERZRERZR

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
it RB 4% HERRRRRZS

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
fat RB MR HERERERZS

LR AR R B A AR SZ Y SN
BELE -

EXHEBARMNERAE M

AL AERNEARATEERE -

SRS ERPRERARAE
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B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

15 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15
Raw materials Rt
Work in progress TEEE fh
Less: write down of inventories B B MU

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
recognised in “selling expenses” in the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the amounts were
incurred as the amount is not significant.

(a) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories ~ FARREARMNFERAE
used in construction contracts
Write-down of inventories FE MR

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

BEREMEARRA

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

252,712 205,111
183,736 167,657
(4,378) (6,357)

432,070 366,411

ESARNEERANEEBEE LD
BMRBERTHHEERR] T #

R REBRTER -

@ RENERABELILHAA
PHERENOTESES T
T

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

2,629,465 2,281,004
- 2,774

2,629,465 2,283,778




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(@)

Contract assets

Contract assets EREE
Arising from performance under 2EAR NELESE

construction contracts

W EE R E

Less: loss allowance

All of the amounts are expected to be billed within
one year from the end of the reporting period,
except for the amounts of RMB145.9 million at
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB225.8 million) related to retentions receivable
(net of loss allowance) which are expected to be
recovered over one year.

Included in the contract assets are amounts
of RMBO0.6 million at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: RMBO.7 million) due from
the companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

The Group’s construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage payments
over the construction period once milestones are
reached, these payment schedules prevent the
build-up of significant contract assets. The Group
typically agrees to a one to five years retention
period after the completion of construction
contracts, depending on the market practice in
the countries where construction contracts are
carried out and credit assessment performed by
management on an individual customer basis.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BAEEIIN - UARKE BB
16 AREERESEERE

(a) AREE

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®ETT ARETT
2,363,737 2,306,997
(783,235)  (466,890)
1,580,502 1,840,107

FT B FIBTE AR 3R & Hifg —
F AR R E - R2021F
12 A 31 BB RN E R & 487
WEREBEE A ARK1459
BET(2020F12 4318 :
AR 2258 FET) BHRN
—F LA YLE o

202112 H31H + fE I
28 % AR BR 2 Il T 2 Rl ) FRIE
AR®06H 8 t(2020F
12A31H: ARKO7TE S
TL)ETABRIEE °

AEERESRBEREY
[ 22 5 7 B BN SR 0 15 0 A
B(—BERER)  WEN
RERMLEREAEGRE
E - RIFAREESRMAE
BRHEEXRMSENLE
EEREBEFPEEETH
EEFG  AEERERE
REXZELERRASH—=
hFRRER -

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

170

(RBERAIN  UARERBLL)
16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Contract assets (continued)
The amount of revenue recognised during the year
from performance obligations satisfied (or partially
satisfied) in previous periods is RMB162.1 million
(2020: RMB170.8 million), mainly due to the
changes in estimate of the stage of completion
of certain construction contracts and approved
contract modifications.
(b) Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities aREE
Construction contracts BESR
— Billings in advance of — BARIF LRSS

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

performance

Included in contract liabilities are amounts
of RMB2.3 million at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: RMB3.2 million) due to the
companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
construction activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Annual Report 2021

16

EREEREGRARE (&)

BREE#E)

FRBLRA B HARIERK (3038
DEK) BARBERBUA
THEAARKI21EE T
(20204 : AR 170.8E S
L) EEHRETEEER
KA B & RERT B (& 5T 7T

TREBREEBPTE -
aRAE
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
514,899 566,515

R2021F12 4318 @ B
7= AR AR SR I T A Rl B FIE
AR ®23H 8 (20205
128318 : AR32EE
T ETAGRALE -

FrBERRABEEIRN—FA
FER U ©

HARBRZEEEFHAF
WBliZE - RN E R
MEBELARAE  BEE5
HEERNBABBZE S
B e



16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

LIABILITIES (continued)

(o)

Contract liabilities (continued)

Movements in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities
as a result of recognising
revenue during the year that
was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning
of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as
a result of billing and receipt
in advance of construction
activities

Balance at 31 December

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHER - AR BEN)
EREERGRAR (&)

b)) AREEGE

ERAENEE
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETRT

A A1 BR&ES 566,515 823,187
FARBRBAEER
ARAE(FIEA
EREE) R
(332,511)  (435,011)
BRI EERTER
FIEEENE R A FEEN
280,895 178,339
W12 B 31 B & 514,899 566,515

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

172

17

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables for contract work
due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control of
the Controlling Shareholder

Bills receivable for contract work

Trade receivables for sale of raw
materials due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control of
the Controlling Shareholder

Less: loss allowance

Financial assets measured at amortised

17 EERURRERRE

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

BRIEEZEUK

e —

F=5 3,230,692 3,802,475
— YL AR R E A A A

164,061 172,252

3,394,753 3,974,727

&R TREEWER 107,103 65,472
HEMRE 5 EUGR
—F=F 5,405 3,940
— ZIERRRR IR HIA A A
1,720 1,809
7,125 5,749

3,508,981 4,045,948

B R (1,925,474) (1,506,777)

HREHRAGTENEREE

cost 1,583,507 2,539,171
At 31 December 2021, the amount of retentions R2021F12 A31H » EWEFR
receivable from customers included in trade and bills Be (MBREBERE) RARKS847.3
receivables (net of loss allowance) is RMB847.3 million ABL(2020F 12 A31H : ARK
(31 December 2020: RMB725.9 million). 7259B8IT) °
Except for retentions receivable (net of loss allowance) of BrR2021F12 A31 H AR 147.3
RMB147.3 million at 31 December 2021 (31 December BEIL(2020F12 A31 8 : ARK
2020: RMB204.6 million), all of the remaining trade and 204.6 B&7T) R FENIREE & (HIBRES
bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one M) IN - HREE S RBGI R

year.

FEREETRHIN —FAYRE -

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

—FR
BB —F

Within 1 year
More than 1 year

The Group generally requires customers to settle
progress billings and retentions receivable in accordance
with contracted terms. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors
and bills receivable are set out in Note 28(a).

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

17

(BSHER - AR BEN)
B RERRERRE ()

BERSHR  EHRUKEER
SR (MRBRERB) RERA N
RREGDTIAT

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARETET

330,095 816,015
1,253,412 1,723,156
1,583,507 2,539,171

REBATEREPBES LGN
HREEERERERRES - BH
AN £ [ {2 B BRER DA K B LA BR 3R K e
WEEELNEERRE—PF
BT FE28(a) °

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
| O B 7S 3R 3R B B )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIBHEN  UARKBEN)
18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 & - AARKRHEMERK
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Prepayments for purchase of BEGFTEBRNRMED)
inventories (Note (i) 304,357 304,660
Prepayment for miscellaneous taxes R TET 3R 44,129 29,140
Deposits for construction contracts’ BEASRRERBOZES (M)
bidding and performance (Note (i) 144,084 128,491
Deposits for purchase of forward EERARES VRS
aluminium contracts 1,123 1,123
Other deposits Hfbite 45,901 49,701
Interest receivable from time deposit TE B 3 B U 19,414 17,510
Derivative financial instruments: PTHETMIA :
— other derivatives — HEMfTET A 54,514 59,288
Amounts due from the Controlling JE AR AR B BR K 52 EL R 6 A
Shareholder and the companies N EIFRIA (M (i)
under his control (Note (i) 5,760 6,708
Government grants receivable JFE AT IB T e B 4,586 11,239
Others HAth 31,581 45,182
655,449 653,042
Less: loss allowance B R (67,120) (35,256)
588,329 617,786

174

Notes:

Hist -

(i)

(ii)

Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.6
million at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB3.8 million) made to the companies under the
control of the Controlling Shareholder.

The balance represented deposits placed with
customers for contracts’ bidding and performance of
contracts in progress. The deposits will be released to
the Group upon the completion of the related bidding or
contract work, where applicable.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for the deposits for construction contracts’
performance and the amounts of RMB5.4 million at
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB15.1
million), all of the remaining deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

(i)

(i)

ZEERBIEN 202112 831 H
AR®36BHEIL(2020F12 A
318 : AR¥38HETL) WA
SRR AR AR I 2 Bl EH AV TE
3K °

ZAERERER SRS RRE
EREHNMEPZNMEE - %
SRS HINERRER SR TE
(2EA) sE TR FECALHE o

ZEFIR B - 8 BEE
TEEH -

BRI 2021 F12 A1 HMEE AR
BAEE AR 5.4 BE T (2020 F
12A318 : AR¥1518ET)I
HEHRFAEERS AR REMmER
FRIEER R — & UK [B] sk iR 5 7

X o



19

Notes to the Consolidated Financi

al Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 19
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(@)

Cash on hand and in bank comprise:

Cash and cash equivalents EHRENERTHNRE
in the consolidated cash flow MR ZEY
statement

Restricted deposits with bank 2R BRI TR R (AT aE)

(Note)
Frozen bank deposits REESRITIE R

Total cash on hand and in bank  FREIR & RERTTIF R 4E%E

Note: HaE
Restricted deposits comprise B HEFEREE
— restricted deposits to secure — EREEAREN R
the performance and retentions RE S ZPR
of construction contracts Tk
— restricted deposits to secure — RARTTERFMRITRE
the bank loans and bank R AR A PR 1 1
bills R
— restricted time deposits to — tEAIRITERRMEER
secure the bank bills BRIl 14 TE BiTE R
— restricted deposits for — ERRANERER
issuance of letter of credit PR Il M 7 R
— restricted time deposits — ERRANERER
for issuance of letter PR Il 14 TE ER 17 3K
of credit
— other time deposits with — Hib XA 17 B8
original maturity of over 3 &l A ;YR 1T 7€ Ef
3 months Tk

The Group’s business operations in mainland
China are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of mainland China is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

(R BAEEBAIN - UARKERER)
REMER > RERREEEY
REMBRSRER

@ FERESRFITEREE

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARETET

284,219 508,565

1,375,903 1,405,934
18,881 98,107

1,394,784 1,504,041

1,679,003 2,012,606

177,863 166,300
365,040 590,750
380,000 409,252
350,000 220,000
100,000 10,000

3,000 19,632

1,375,903 1,405,934

REE R B AR IAA
REE - ARB AR B
MABRNER EHFER
W E S X P BB E R
SNEE HIFTARIR ©

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

176

(B=EEHAI -

AARE R EAL)

19 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(0)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans and other
borrowings

Repayment of bank loans and other
borrowings

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Borrowing costs paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Increase in lease liabilties from entering info
new leases during the year

Exchange adjustments

Total borrowing costs

Total other changes

At 31 December 2021

R E1A18
AERERERY:
MERTRAR AR
REFTERRALER
ENEEREAEHA
ENEERENERA
EffERA
BRECIERDER
Eft2e:
RERE R RRNEE
AfEHsEm

EXHE

fRIAEE

B Ll

R0 §123818

19 REMER BERRESEEY
REMREREN (&)

b RERBELANEBEIHE

Amounts
due to the
Controlling
Shareholder
and the Amounts Discounted
companies due to bills and
Bank under his third Lease credit Interest
loans control parties liabilities letters payable Total
ERERRR
REESGN  ENEZH ERZER
B8R DA E HERE ERE FEfHE £t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 22) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)
Wz w2y W2y 29 W2y W2y
1,099,200 131,220 108,162 9,541 1,406,800 1,241 2,762,184
550,000 505,000 147,609 - 1,202,215 - 2,404,824
(699,200) (481,900) (108,182) - (1,406,800) - 2,696,082)
- - - (28,951) - - (28,951)
- - - (597) - - (597)
- - - - - (120,800) (120,800)
(149,200) 23,100 39,427 (29,548) (204,585) (120,800) (441,606)
- - - 27,431 - - 27,431
- (1172) - (893) - - (8,065)
- 9,99 - 597 - 120,671 131,164
- 2,604 - 20,13 - 120,571 150,630
950,000 167,144 147,609 1128 1,202,215 1012 2471,108

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(0)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

At1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans and other
borrowings

Repayment of bank loans and other
borrowings

(Capttal element of ease rentals peld

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Borrowing costs paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Increase in lease liabities from entering info
new leases during the year

Exchange adjusiments

Total borrowing costs

Total other changes

At 31 December 2020

R0E1A18

BERERERY:

MERTRALETHENE

EREOENRARES

EfEEREAEHA
EfEERENENA
ERNfERA

HLo DR

RERERIRENER
BREAEN

EXnE

fRERAEE

RONE12A31A

(Br=BIEHIN

IAARME R EAL)

19 REMER BERRESEEY
REMREREN (&)

b REERBELANEBEIHK

(%)
Amounts
due tothe
Controling
Shargholder
and the Amounts Discounted
companies dueto bils and
Bank under his third Lease crealt Interest
loans control parties liabities [etters payable Total
FERERRR
REEfH  EREZH ERZER
JER MM B HERE B EfiHE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NRETL ARETT ARETT ARETT NREFTL ARBTT ARETT
(Note 22) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)
W2 Wiz (i) () (2 (2
1,645,000 133,540 - 13019 661,188 5,075 2477822
1,249,200 478320 108,182 - 1,874,200 - 3,709,902
(1,796,000) (474613) - - (1,148,588) - (3,418,201)
- - - (35,067) - - (35,067)
- - - (1,710) - - (1,710)
- - - - - (167,777) (167,777)
(545,800) 3707 108,182 (36,767) 725,612 (167,777) 87,157
- - - 31,748 - - 31,748
- (8,067) - (169) - - (8,736)
- 2,640 - 1,710 - 169,943 174193
- (6,027) - 33,280 - 169,943 197,205
1,099,200 131,220 108,182 9,541 1,406,800 7,241 2,762,184

SRS ERPRERARAE
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B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEERIN AAREREM)

19 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 19
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for

leases comprise the following. All these amounts
relate to lease rentals paid.

Within financing cash flows REER M
20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20
Trade payables for purchase of ERATHEEFEEE S
inventories due to: FERTER
— third parties — %=F
— companies under the control of — R ERIESIA A A

the Controlling Shareholder

Trade payables due to sub-contractors FEft D G170 & 5 FE R 3k

Bills payable ENEE
Financial liabilities measured at HEHENAFTENESRAE

amortised cost

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

REMER  RERRSEEY
REMREREN (&)

© THERSRERE
ZRBERAERERTHE
AT o BT s IR R
MER S AR -
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000

AR®TR ARETRT

(29,548) (36,767)

BEZRNRRENRE
2021 2020

RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTR ARETT

1,003,156 996,351

5,667 5,197

1,008,823 1,001,548
621,489 634,863
194,113 424,341

1,824,425 2,060,752

BB ZRNREENEEREHR
—FRBERAREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 20 EZENRREMNEEGE)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RBERR BHRNARENE
of trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, BARZE|EA A M BRI AT T -
is as follows:
2021 2020

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Within 1 month or on demand — & A N SIRE K 1,711,229 1,754,743
More than 1 month but less than BE—EAREIR=EA

3 months 75,733 127,429
More than 3 months BB =1EH 37,463 178,580

1,824,425 2,060,752

SRS ERPRERARAE
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

21 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 PERTBI X R HAtb P

Payables for staff related costs FET B THERAA A

Payables for transportation and JE A~F 38 %) = R ez Bl =2
insurance expenses

Payables for interest expenses FEA BRI SZ

Payables for construction and purchase ZZEREEMXE - BE
of property, plant and equipment NGNS

Deposits from sub-contractors HBEEXZHES

Deposits from suppliers for contracts’ £t &N H A& FIRIE
bidding and performance MBS

Amounts due to third parties (Note (i) & 58 =75 3RIAE (K73 (i)

Amounts due to the Controlling FEST AR I R I LA

Shareholder and the companies
under his control

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT

136,034 147,366

33,838 27,653

7,012 7,241
11,734 10,617
38,985 37,5620
24,792 56,060

147,609 108,182

1,721 1,721
155,423 129,499
1,202,215 1,406,800
4,575 5,326
40,480 57,775

— non-interest bearing (Note (i) — PR (B )
— interest bearing (Note (i) — SR (WA (i)
Discounted bills and credit letters AR ER MERE
Lease liabilities (Note 23) HE&E (A 23)
Others HA
Financial liabilities measured at REHEK AT EN SR BE
amortised cost
Payables for miscellaneous taxes ANE:
Derivative financial instruments: MESHTA
— other derivatives — HEMHTETA

Provision for outstanding legal claims  R{EfHERZREEE

1,804,418 1,995,760

43,083 52,5695
- 26,386
22,520 23,131

1,870,021 2,097,872

Notes: Hiaz -

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (i)
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(i) The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate of (ii)
5.08% and repayable within one year.

(iii) The amounts are with fixed interest rate and repayable (iii)
within one year.

AR BN - AR R N E
FEETRER -

ZEFEBERE - REEHE
5.08% st ERR—FAREE -

=111

% E IR EE R RFE B R —

All of the accrued expenses and other payables at R2021F 128318 » ATE (2020%F
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: except for 12A31H: RARKG6.9BE 25N
amounts of RMB6.9 million), are expected to be settled FERTFSZ R E A RS TR RS 1
or recognised in profit or loss within one year or are AEES RN BRRERNIZEKE

o

repayable on demand.

fi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SO B RRME @
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BB AR - AARBAER)
BANK LOANS 22 RITER
(a)  The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed (@) REEMEERITERSIT
as follows: LU
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Guaranteed by the Controlling LA % A% B % 52 42 ] A
Shareholder and a company RAEERK AR
under his control and/or 217 A% AR R AR ) A A B Y
pledged by securities of FBHER
a company under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder 200,000 344,200
Pledged by bank deposits and/or LARITIF R EHE IR K2 8k A
secured by property, plant and ~ AEBEHYIE - HE K&
equipment and land use rights 5% &5 K == 3 {5 F3 A {E K 30
of the Group (Note 22(c)) (Kt 22(c)) 140,000 255,000
Secured by property, plant and ~ LAKREBERYE - BE L&A
equipment and land use rights Kz 1= 30(5 FA R {EHE 48 K2 LA A
of the Group, secured by ST R AR R I A B K
property, plant and land use B - BB Rk E A
rights of and guaranteed by BR (K 22(c))
companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder
(Note 22(c)) 220,000 —
Pledged by securities of a VA B 52 28 A% B BR 22 61 B9 A )
company under the control B3 SRR
of the Controlling Shareholder - 100,000
560,000 699,200

SRS ERPRERARAE 181



I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
| O B 7S 3R 3R B B )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

22  BANK LOANS (continued) 22 SRITERE)
(o)  The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed () AEEKRERITERDNT
as follows: s

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

Secured by property, plant and ~ LAKREBERYE - BE K&
equipment and land use rights 3% & i {5 A4 (E K IR

of the Group, secured by N R SRR AR R A A9
property, plant and equipment ARl MEWE - BE &
and land use rights of and S N i {E AR
guaranteed by companies (K1t 22(c)

under the control of the
Controlling Shareholder

(Note 22(c)) 390,000 400,000
The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable AEERNRARITERNE
as follows: HIERAT ¢

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TRT

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 390,000 —
After 2 years but within 3 years MFEREBE=FR - 400,000

390,000 400,000

(c) At 31 December 2021, the aggregate carrying (© R2021F12H31H ' A
value of the property, plant and equipment and SEMRITEREEFRY
land use rights pledged for the Group’s bank ¥ BENEE - LHER
loans is RMB367.0 million (31 December 2020: ENBRAEAARE367.0
RMB413.2 million). BE (2020124318 :

AR¥E4132BETT) °

At 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the MR2021F12 381 H + KN&
deposits pledged for the Group’s short-term bank E SR ERITE RE EHE
loans is RMBNil (31 December 2020: RMB30.0 EHERNEAEEAAR
million). # 5T (20205 12 A31H -

AR¥3008ETT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BANK LOANS (continued)

(d) At 831 December 2021, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB1,280 million
(31 December 2020: RMB1,310.0 million)
were utilised to the extent of RMB555.0 million
(31 December 2020: RMB785.0 million).

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 28(b). At 31 December 2021, none of the
covenants relating to the bank loans had been
breached (31 December 2020: None).

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
After 1 year but within 2 years —FERBRMEAN
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRAFAN

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

22 RITER(E)

©)

MR2021F12H31H * A&
EMRITREREAARKE
1,280 8 & 7t (20204 12 A
318 : AR®1,31008 &
L) EBAARKS55.08
Er(2020412 A31H : A

R¥785.0B87T) °

$’§IE’J++:FfEﬁ§¥”—§
REME BB INE
AR R eE % T A
B QDZIS%l‘t&?@?* - Al
/,fxma EEN - AEH

HHQ*A #EF%@

°© ZK%.EEE//IL@JéiH
BME’J —FEFBEH R
28(b) e ¥ 2021 F 12 A 31
B BEEREMERTE
B BRI 25 (2020 12 A
31H : #&) -

23 HESE

R2021E12A31H HEEED
EBEBRIT :

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

___________ hers 2
624 3,100

1,929 1,115
___________ 2008 e
7,128 9,541

SRS ERPRERARAE
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B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements of current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Income tax payable at 1 January 1 A1 BEEMFTER

Exchange adjustments ME H, 38 &
Provision for income tax on the — F R {h&HERTFEE
estimated taxable profits FRiSTi st (Bt 7(a)

for the year (Note 7(a))
Income tax paid during the year FRBE TS

Income tax refunded FriStiRE
Income tax payable at ®12 A 31 B ER TSR

31 December

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

& GrEH IR R 7 20 10 FFT 18 Bt
@  AUEBRRENNEDEH
EREIT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETRT

212,960 226,930

(5,825) (4,998)
34,345 6,827
(4,509) (15,949)

4,385 150

241,356 212,960




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement

(B=E AN -

IAARME R EAL)

24 AHMBRRRANAER (&)

b) CEHEIABLCHRREELE

% :

RE HF BRI KRR
EFIBREE R B ERHENKE

of financial position and the movements during D RERNEEHOT -
the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Loss
depreciation allowance on Remeasurement
and trade and of the fair
government other  Provision for value of
grants and receivables warranties, derivative
Unused tax related ~ Writedown  and contract and financial
losses  depreciation  of inventories assets  legal claims  instruments Total
ERFRITEY EARAR
FEEREUR BUHUR Elfite
AR BRRER AEEEN  RERER fEERIEN
i RRITE FEHA FERR ERAR RMEE it
Deferred tax arising from: RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RTIRRRENERLHE ARET ARETR ARETR ARETn AR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2020 1200%1 A 1A 25,213 16419 89 318,626 50,064 786 466,063
Exchange adjustments (1,509) - - (396) (506) - (2407
Creditecl{charged) to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 39,950 (4,660) 59 (102,397) 20,307) b,721) 93,076)
At 31 Decamber 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020512831 BR
R0 &1R1A 63,718 10,759 954 210,833 29,259 (4,935) 370,580
Exchangg adjusiments L (511) - - (26) (510) - (1,107)
(Charged)redted to the consolidated. ~ RNABERRRETA/ (%)
statement of profitor loss (Note 7(a)) W) (19,188) 3,75 (283) (621) 445 (3,998) (19,850)
At 31 December 2021 R0 %12A318 43,959 14514 671 210,186 29,186 (8,899) 349,623

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

186

(B=EEHAI -

AARE R EAL)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(©

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

Deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement EEFIRE EE

of financial position

Deferred tax liabilities recognised A& Gt 81 #EAR 3R R FER

in the consolidated statement EIERIEE E

of financial position

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(r), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences
arising from certain subsidiaries of the Group
of RMB2,374.8 million at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: RMB1,598.7 million), as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Except
for the amount of RMB764.8 million which will
not expire under the relevant tax legislation, the
remaining unused tax losses at 31 December
2021 will expire on or before 31 December 2026.

Annual Report 2021
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KA AN R AR

SO BIRRRANAER (2)

(©

B HH B R NRER AR

ERIBERE R R ENHE -
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARETRT
349,623 370,984
- (404)

349,623 370,580

AERELHAEE

1B 45 B 7E 2(0) BT 31 B0 & 51 X
® AN & E IR 562021 F
12A31BBAREEE T
B A REE R RE) AR IEE
BRI REEARE
2,374.8 BEIL (202012 A
318 : ARM1,598.78 8B
T0) HERIEERIBEE « KA
EHEBRBAAER R ERE
AR R A7 B8 A FE SR At A1
LA SE R B M E 18 - B
ARBT7648E BT T EE
BRABBERTER  #T
7202112 H31 B H) K &)
FA T 7% 5 18 1% 7R 2026 55 12
A 31 Bk AR @ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 EOEMBERRRANFAEHR ()
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e)

At 31 December 2021, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC amounted
to RMB995.4 million (31 December 2020:
RMB2,070.6 million), of which no deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that such profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

At 1 January

Exchange adjustments
Additional provisions made
Provisions utilised

At 31 December
Less: amounts included as current

liabilities at the end of the reporting
period

AEREERARAE

R2021612H31H - B #
NS B P R B A S I BT B A
ANREANENEREZ8ER
A R #9954 8 & jL(2020
F12A318 : AR¥2,070.6
BExT)  EPSEREES
K 5% % ) FE - B 18 B3R T
MIEBEELEE  RAR
PAN/NGIE R = =N =
BREBBUR MEBEEZS
MBI g g R A B R R{E
DI °

25 {RI&EHE

m1A1H
BE 5 SR
ERHRERIN R
EBAEE

®12 A31H

B RERREEERD
BERNEHE

2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARETRT

233,798 255,809
(8,120) (5,213)
52,217 57,246
(52,797) (74,044)

225,098 233,798

(38,973) (48,773)

186,125 185,025
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES (continued)

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts
with its customers, the Group will rectify any defects
arising within one to five years from the date of
completion of the construction contracts, as required
by industry regulations in respective jurisdictions and
depending on the terms negotiated with each customer.
Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of the
expected settlement under these construction contracts
in respect of construction contracts completed within
one to five years prior to the end of the reporting period.
The amount of provision takes into account the Group’s
recent claim experience and is only made where a
warranty claim is probable.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB AR - AARBAER)
26  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - RERRE
Movements in components of equity (a) TETR AR A ER o B
The reconciliation between the opening and REE R G OF & AR
closing balances of each component of the 73 B ER ) 2 AR AR 4 B Y ¥TBR
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the HREHEREERT - F
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Y2 F L EE AR R E R
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual REEKE D N E BB
components of equity between the beginning and FIEAT -
the end of the year are set out below:
Shares held
Share Share  under share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve loss Total
RERH%E
& RERE  EFERG EXRf Zithk a3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
MNote26C)  Mole26)  (Mote26(0i)  Mote 26600
(hize0)  (WEzmgy  (WEzd (B0
At 1 January 2020 RN0NE1F1A 519,723 574,047 210) 48,980 (77,39) 1,085,145
Changes in equity for 2020; NNEF2BERE.
Loss for the year EmEE - - - - (3,698) (3,698)
Other comprehensive income e - - - (64,249) = (64,249)
Total comprehensive income alELE - - - (64,249) (3,698 (67,947)
Termination of the Share Award Scheme &R - - 20 - (176) Y
At 31 December 2020 RNNE12AAR
and 1 January 2021 NANE1R1A 519,723 574,047 - (15,269) (61,269) 997,282
Changes in equity for 2021: NN EZERES .
Loss for the year EmEE - - - - (2483 2.489)
Other comprehensive income E2ENa - - - (28402) - (28,402)
Total comprehensive income SHhREE - - - (28402 (2489 (30,889)
At 31 December 2021 R0 E12731R 519,723 574,047 - [#3,671) (83,792) 966,347
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$Nil).

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the
year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$SNil).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital:

Authorised:

At 1 January and
31 December,
at HK$0.1 each

Ordinary shares,
issued and
fully paid:

At 1 January and
31 December

EERE

M A1ER
12R318
0178/ 8K

LER SR
KRR :

R1A1ER
12 A318

(B=E AN -

IAARME R EAL)

26 BX - #HERRE(E)

(© SN
EERBBITRA
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares shares
RHEE K8 E
'000 HK$°000 '000 HK$'000
TH BRI Tk BETT
12,000,000,000 1,200,000  12,000,000,000 1,200,000
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE e
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
Tt ARETT Fiz AREBTL
6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

(i) Shares held under share award
scheme

The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share
Award Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme was terminated
on 29 July 2020.

(iii)  Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the
difference between the carrying values of
the subsidiaries acquired/disposed and
the considerations paid/received under the
Group’s reorganisation; (ii) the difference
between the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the
Group and the considerations paid; and
(iii) the difference between the carrying
value of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the acquisition of a
business under common control in 2012.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of
association of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-
distributable. The appropriation to these
reserves is at discretion of the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. The PRC
statutory reserves can only be utilised for
predetermined means upon approval by
the relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012,
a reserve for production safety is required
to be set up and to be appropriated
at a fixed rate on the revenue of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC. The reserve can be utilised for
expenses or capital expenditures incurred
in connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the presentation
currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(u).

(k5

BIEA  AARERER)

26 BX - #HERRE(E)

o RENEEREN(E)

(iv)

(v)

REAE RS

RIRA R B P B
oA olnpEE NG FAER
ERAA - ZEHB
N AVARN EBA
7IREETE M o A
ZERBRENDEBRE
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BE 1B
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher equity shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, the Group defines adjusted net
debt as total debt (which includes bank loans,
discounted bills and credit letters, amounts due to
third parties and the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control (interest bearing),
trade and bills payables and lease liabilities) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash on
hand and in bank. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at
an acceptable level. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may issue new shares, return
capital to equity shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 26

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at
31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

Current liabilities:
Trade and bills payables
Amounts due to the Controlling
Shareholder and the companies
under his control
— interest bearing
Amounts due to third parties
Accrued expense and other
payables-lease liabilities
Discounted bills and credit letters
Bank loans

Non-current liabilities:
Bank loans
Lease liabilities

Total debt
Less:
— restricted deposits
— cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt

Total equity and adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

mBAE

BHRNRRENRER

R A F2R B BB BR % 52 EL PR 6

NAIMFRIE

al s

3B = K508

(BSHER - AR BEN)
BX - RERKRE ()

M 20215 K& 20204 12 A 31 HAYA

FEEt R R EMmENEERE

REIRRIE RS RRE
RITER

FEREEE
RITER
HEAE
mEY
VA
— RFIEFR
—ReRkBEEE

B
KARFER
BERKAREXREE

KARFERRERLR

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

SESHABRFEBHEE AN RN
I

31 31

December December

2021 2020

2021 & 2020 £

12HA31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT T ARBTT
1,824,425 2,060,752

155,423 129,499

147,609 108,182

4,575 5,326

1,202,215 1,406,800

560,000 699,200

3,894,247 4,409,759

390,000 400,000

2,553 4,215

4,286,800 4,813,974
(1,394,784) (1,504,041)
(284,219) (508,565)

2,607,797 2,801,368
1,151,998 2,100,752

226% 133%
A7) g H AR R B B A R BE 4R 2 A0

EBAEINEE AR ERR S ©
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27

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control

Purchase of materials and BEMA MRS
services

Net increase in interest bearing £ B8 8 77 IRER AT B 8 70

advances received from related 3 HNHFEE

parties

Net decrease in non-interest- T RAEE 7 TR EEK
bearing advances received AR
from related parties

Sales of raw materials SHE R

Interest expense from interest FTEBRFAF S E R

bearing advances

Further details on guarantees provided by related
parties for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed
in Notes 22(a) and 22(b).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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HEARE TR 2T °

(@)  EERRABCR R EZEHIMQ
AR 5

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

73 4,402
25,924 4,900

- (1,193)

928 1,960
9,996 9,401
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
directors of the Company as disclosed in Note 8,
is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits = EERA
Retirement schemes contributions iR {RET 2| {5

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BAEEIIN - UARKE BB
27 ERBBAEXREZ (&)

) EE2EBAEHDH

AEBETBEEBABNF
B BREAHESHEMNA
RAIEEXHRBENT

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

4,516 17,515
198 93
4,714 17,608
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AARE R EAL)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and contract assets. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted deposits, bills receivables
and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit standing, for which
the Group considers to represent low credit risk.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
refundable rental deposits is considered to be
low, taking into account the remaining lease term
and the period covered by the rental deposits.

Except for the guarantee letters given by the
Group as set out in Note 30(a), the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in Note 30(a).

Financial assets and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At 31 December 2021
and 2020, there are no significant concentrations
of credit risk through exposure to individual
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate.
The Group generally requires customers to
settle progress billings and retentions receivable
in accordance with contract terms and other
debts in accordance with agreements. Except
for retentions receivable, financial and contract
assets for contract work are considered past due
once billings have been made and revenue has
been recognised, respectively. Retention terms of
one to five years may be granted to customers for
retentions receivable. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for financial
assets and contract assets arising from other
construction contracts at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

BBREREEREMIANDR
BfE (&)

EERR (&)

ETMEERGREEE)

RAEBYMBRPETTES
EEE - ZEFFEIER
FaEZIRANREL KEH
ZIREES - AE REPK
ERBEFREMMAERER
BEREN AKEBRREE
REPREENIERREE A
EHA N MR E S RRE
WA E EAER - BREW
RERI EREEREE
7 B R AR B R B A
Rt i o B P R U AR
HeER —E0hFHNRER
ReBE AKEEAIEEX
BEPRHEIMS -

AEEZBERERREERE
MErEcFEMBHRERRE
ANEHEEREMTREAS
FERNEREERARE
=2 EiE R o

SRS ERPRERARAE

199



I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

200

(B>

28

BN

AARE R EAL)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Prior to 2021, the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases. Expected loss rates
are based on actual loss experience over the
past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

In 2021,
particular, some property developer customers

certain customers of the Group, in

(the “Defaulted Customers”), have encountered
liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of the
macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19
pandemic, and have defaulted on their debts.
Accordingly, there was a significant increase in
credit risk for financial assets and contract assets
arising from contracts with these Defaulted
Customers.

The calculation of loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets arising from
construction projects as at 31 December 2021
were carried out by an independent specialist,
namely Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal
Limited, with experience in expected credit loss
calculation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

The following table gives information about
the expected loss rates for financial assets
and contract assets arising from construction
contracts related to Defaulted Customers as at
31 December 2021.

Financial assets and contract BHEARPEIER
assets arising from contracts HROSEEER
with arising from construction ERAEE

contracts related to the
Defaulted Customers

The expected loss rates are estimated based on
the weighted-average recovery rate of troubled
debts derived from historical market data
and have been adjusted for industry specific
information and forward-looking information. The
Group has identified the enterprise prosperity
index and real estate industry enterprise
prosperity index to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the weighted-average
recovery rate of troubled debts derived from
historical market data based on expected
changes in these factors.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

BBREREEREMIANDR
BfE (&)

SEER (&)

ETMEERGREEE)

T K 5 & E = 2021 F12 A
SIREHENEFPHEIAR
ERNCRHEEREREE
RTEHIE IR R ER -

2021

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEREE KREZE BREAE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT
74.5% 753,154 561,175

IR RERRIBE L HHE
BERHMARERINEFH
ElU R - WERFITE
FEBRARBEEEST
AHE - AEEBEERR
BHEMEHETREESR
EERETE RRERNEE
YREZFEARNBREL
EEARE LM HEIEE
BT REF NIRRT U
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AARE R EAL)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

202 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets
arising from construction contracts from other
customers as at 31 December 2021.

mE (CREH)
BEAOR—F
BEBEE—F

Current (not past due)
Within 1 year past due
More than 1 year past due

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets as
at 31 December 2020.

mE (CREH)
BN —F
aEeE—F

Current (not past due)
Within 1 year past due
More than 1 year past due
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BHEEREEREMIENAR

BE (&)

(@) EERR (&)
tRMEEREGREE(E)
T3R5I E A A & B 7 2021
F12AEBREEEMAR
FRIIESG RMEKRR KR
EWEE & & FE EMHEE
ZEERRBRFESHEHEX
ZER

2021

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEE BEAE HERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%TrR
1.0% 446,625 4,275
9.6% 1,167,359 111,522
58.0% 3,505,580 2,031,737
5,119,564 2,147,534
TRIBMHE A RS E R 2020
F12A81EHH®E G REE
BRFREREEMERZ
FERkREEHRERBLXZ
&k}
2020
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
TEHEIER BREAE HERE
% RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
1.9% 584,861 10,862
9.6% 1,344,129 129,527
41.4% 4,423,955 1,833,278
6,352,945 1,973,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)
HREREERSBIANAR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of financial assets and contract assets
during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January ®1 A1 B

Exchange adjustment M 5, 8 B

Amounts written-off during the &= AU A £ %8
year

Impairment losses recognised FAB R EEE
during the year

Impairment losses written-back 4 B BRI EE 18
during the year

Balance at 31 December M12 A 31 BH &6k

28

BfE (&)

(@) EERE (&)

ETMEERGREEE)

FRNEHESZREEMNARAE

EREERERESHOT
2021 2020
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT
1,973,667 1,704,703
(19,627)  (24,592)
(93,171) —
906,799 380,154
(58,959) (86,598
2,708,709 1,973,667

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEERIN AAREREM)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed
by the Group, which includes the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The Group had incurred a net loss of
RMB995,829,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB690,625,000). Notwithstanding the above,
based on a cash flow forecast of the Group for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2022
prepared by the management, which has taken
into account the unutilised bank facilities, the
expected renewal of the short-term loans upon
maturity, the financial support committed by
the Controlling Shareholder and a company under
his control, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Group will have adequate
funds to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due for at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

BBEREEREMIANDR
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mEBE SRR

AEBETEREPBKEF
BREACEKNEHRER
ERERRREESNREF
Ko REBNHBEAEHE
RERYETHFENREET
EERENER - LERE
HEBZEMREHEBRNEER
& B B ER 1S TE 48 A 7R R
BREE  UheHEHLE
REHRRBDESHE -

HZE2021FE12 A31HIE » K
EEEABEFENARE
995,829,000(20204F 12 A 31
H : AR#690,6250007T) °
EE M Eaipra - RIEE R
[E 4 % & B 22022 F 12 A
31 BIEMAE MRS MTE
Al EERT AREARERIT
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B — R A A B IS 5 B9
e ARENEERALNE
EHSHER RN E M EE
HEHERBEDLTZEA
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S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(0)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company have also identified
initiatives to address the Group’s liquidity needs,
which include the following:

o The Group continues to improve its
operating cash flows by accelerating the
progress billings and collection of trade
receivables, negotiating with suppliers on
payment terms, and reducing of operation
expenses; and

° The Group continues the negotiations with
various banks, including but not limited to:

(i) renewal of the bank loans upon
maturity; and/or

(i) provision of additional bank facilities
to the Group.

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
current rates at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest dates the Group can be required
to pay:

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

BBREREEREMIANDR

BfE (&)
b RBEERE)
ARREFHEE THRRASE

BB BRI B
T -

. EBMRERRRE R
JE AR R [l e - B g
SRR ETT
KA AR EE
ERUFENEER
LHEM M

. BBEEXRITETH
7 BEETER

(i) RITEFE B
BRHEE M
B

(i) BONNIRITE
FREVERAL o

TRHAMNAEEFETES
BEEMIEZREEN R
EHEAEENRTARE
H1B - HERARZEIHRIR
e (BREERE RN R
BN SR (82T
K)REHREMEEEBHR
TTRIR) RANEEBZ R
RFPAMGEH
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 MERREERSMIANAAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) ) TmBESERR(E)
2021
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
REAERRER
More than  More than Carrying
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than at 31
on demand 2 years 3 years Total  December
—£R BE-F BBME M12A31R
FEER EIRWE EIRZF st WEREE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETx

Non-derivative financial ETEERALE

liabilities:
Trade and bills payables BoRNTRER

Z& 1,824,425 - - 1,824,425 1,824,425

Accrued expenses and REHB A 2N

other payables measured JETRS R

at amortised cost R 1,813,670 - - 1,813,670 1,804,418
Lease liabilties HERRE - 700 2,290 2,990 2,553
Bank loans RITER 586,744 16,965 395,823 999,532 950,000

2021
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow

BREAMRRALE (RE) R

More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

—FR BA-F BAWF
HEER ETES BOYREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR

Derivatives settled gross: B &EMMET RA%
Other forward foreign HiEHNMNES A -

exchange contracts:

— outflow — T (400,463) (280,726) (16,214) (697,403)
— inflow —wA 433,398 301,714 17,413 752,525
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(0)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Trade and bills payables

Accrued expenses and
other payables measured
at amortised cost

Lease liabilities

Bank loans

Derivatives settled gross:
Other forward foreign
exchange contracts:
— outflow
— inflow

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEREIN « UAREE ABA)
28 HEEREEFESMTIAENAR
BE (&)

b RBEERE)

2020
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRAREHR SR
More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than at 31
on demand 2 years 3 years Total December
—FR BE—F HBBmE M12A318
HEEX  ELRME  EIRZF @zt HEREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETR ARBTT ARETT AR%T:
BHENTRER
B3 2,060,752 - - 2,060,752 2,060,752
BB ENATER
JERF K
Eft B3R 2,004,178 - — 2004178 1,995,760
HEARE - 3,326 1,242 4,568 4,215
RITER 738,087 17,660 406,077 1,161,824 1,099,200
2020
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
BRRERAS (L) /RA
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FRA BE—f B
FEEK BORME ELRAF 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETT
EREBETETRASE
HiEHINERL :
— (565,911) (73,889) (1,061,529) (1,701,329)
— A 565,796 73,778 1,095,012 1,734,586

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value

or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk

arises primarily from interest bearing borrowings.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed

rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate

risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s bank borrowings at

the end of the reporting period:

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank loans

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans

Total bank borrowings
Fixed rate bank borrowings

as a percentage of total
bank borrowings

208 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BBEREEREMIANDR
EfE (&)

2021

Effective
interest rate

BRA=

%

5.13%

4.35%

RMB’000 %
ARBTR

560,000

390,000

950,000

IESEI

MERBRIEERTANDL
EEIARRESRERATS
FERBFMKBEER o A
SE®MMERREEREE
BREE - RIBMNEREE
MERZEHMEED S AE
BASRSREN TR M
AVMELEE RS

i)  FREE
TRADANEEIRTT

fEERHwE SR F
RIEHE -

¢ o

2020
Effective
interest rate
B %
RMB’000
ARETT

5.06%

699,200

4.42% 400,000

1,099,200

59% 64%
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 ERREERSHIENDR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEE (&)

(continued)

() Interest rate risk (continued) @) FIERE R (&)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii) BRBED N

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated M 2021412 A 31
that a general increase/decrease of B - AEtiafl e
100 basis points in interest rates, with # 0, R A 100 8 &
all other variables held constant, would 2h - META A fthA] &
have increased/decreased the Group’s A=EFIE - K&
accumulated losses of approximately B R EEE NS
RMB3.9 million (2020: approximately WP AREKE398
RMB3.4 million). 8 T (20204 © &9 A

RH¥34B/E8T) -

The sensitivity analysis above indicates EXHGERE DT
the instantaneous change in the Group’s BATRAEEMTE
profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits/ B (EE) RR
(accumulated losses) assuming that the BAE(REEE)
change in interest rates had occurred at BIBDEE & &) - RF A
the end of the reporting period and had ENEEFE RN REH
been applied to remeasure those non- REREBERANE
derivative financial instruments held by M EASERE R
the Group which expose the Group to SAEBRFEHR
cash flow interest rate risk at the end of EEIRERERN KR
the reporting period. The impact on the RHIETE SR T
Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained B SRS Er g
profits/(accumulated losses) is estimated 8, (B18) KRB
as an annualised impact on interest E(REHEE) K
expenses of such a change in interest B TIERB BT =X
rates. The sensitivity analysis is performed FE)EF R A M F
on the same basis for 2020. EX (-2 SlPA T
BREE DTk E
2020 518 R H EL AR
1o

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(B=EEHAI -

28

AARE R EAL)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through revenue from and costs incurred for
contract work, purchases of imported materials
which give rise to receivables, payables, inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group, and cash balances that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, CAD,
RMB, HKS$, Qatar riyal (“QAR”), Vietnamese dong
(“VND”) and Russia ruble (“RUB”).

A significant portion of the Group’s business
is overseas construction contracts, and these
contracts are generally settled in currencies
other than RMB. The Group uses forward foreign
exchange contracts to minimise its exposure to
currency risk arising therefrom.

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk

The Group hedges portion of its foreign
currency exposure in respect of revenue
from overseas construction contracts
and uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its currency risk until
the settlement date of foreign currency
receivables.

Annual Report 2021
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S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BHEEREEREMIENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) @) B (&)

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk (i) BN RS (2)

(continued)
The forward foreign exchange contracts RHINES DRAREE
are used to economically hedge forecast PR AN ST E Y
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities EARS  B¥E
denominated in foreign currencies. Change EMAaE- &I
in the fair value of the forward foreign &N ADEBER
exchange contracts is recognised in profit gaEhat AEm (5K
or loss (see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 7 6(a)) o E £ 2021
2021, the net fair value of forward F12A8318 " & H#
foreign exchange contracts was a gain of INEELEFARE
RMB54.5 million (31 December 2020: a EAKZ ARKS45
gain of RMB32.9 million) recognised as AEJT(20205 12 A
derivative financial instruments. 1R : WmARK

e —

RI9AETT) R
APTESRIA -

In respect of the remaining receivables, MARBEEEIEE
payables and forecast transactions BN B ST E R
denominated in currencies other than the HARERER - BN
functional currency of the entity to which ERXREBBHARSM
they relate, the Group ensures that the net 5 ASKEBBAEY
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by SR ABNHEXRES
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot S EINE AR E
rates where necessary to address short- BN E1ER - R
term imbalances. 3 B\ Fex ik AR PR AT

BMKEE -

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BHEEREEREMIENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) B (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk i) FAZTHEERR

The following tables detail the Group’s TR FFALAN S B P
exposure at the end of the reporting period HEHRAZIAEEE
to currency risk arising from recognised B RIR I RE & B BAS
assets or liabilities denominated in a BEGTENEBRE
currency other than the functional currency EXBEEENEE
of the entity to which they relate. For Bz o BLEFITE -
presentation purposes, the amounts of the WK B R A EE T A
exposure are shown in RMB, translated ARBERR - FHAR
using the spot rates at the end of the R BRSR A 3R B b =
reporting period. Differences resulting from BmE - WANBEHRE
the translation of the financial statements N TS 1) B 7 R 3%
of foreign operations into the Group’s RASBERNZYEE
presentation currency are excluded. EERNETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 ERREERSHIENDR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o  EERRE)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) AZTNEERRE)
2021

UD  Ewo  SGD AU GBP  CHF  RMB  HKS QAR
v En MM A KB Rt ARR En ~ERAR
RMBYOOD RMBOOO RMBOO RMB'000 RMBYOOD RMBOOO RMBOO RMB000 AMBI000
ARRTR ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTZ

Contract assets AEAE 20,267 - 125 = = = = = =
Tadeandbilsccehebles  EAENGREAZE 260801 6154 TIGNM 052 3910 48065 ER S .11
Deposts, prepaymentsand %%~ BfSURER

other receivables B 232547 43264 13,745 1544 55156 191,426 1,089 324920 9,744
Cashand cash equivalents B2 RBEE5EN 8179 50,750 - 8 328 - 1 - -
Tadsandbils payables ~ EHEMFRERTE  (13726)  (31,086) - - (2128 (14495 - - -
Aoonedepensesand TR RAMERF

other payables (223,834) - - - (14765 - (1,051,313 - -

Grosseposurearsng ~ BEZEEREEEL
fom recognised assels  FIRREE

and ligbiltes 203254 124452 81674 12,135 360731 224996 (1,050,244) 320741 78618
Notional amounts of RlETES S

forward foreign NERNEREE

exchange contracts

Used as econormic

hedges (11,476)  (32,489) - (46,654 (147455  (20,235) - - -

Netexposurearsngfom ~ EEFAERARESE
recognised assets HERTE
and liabities 81,778 91963 87,674 25481 213276 204761 (1,050,244) 320,741 78,618

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

214

(RBERAIN  UARERBLL)
28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 MERREERSMIANAAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) B R (&
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued) i) FAZTHEERR(E
2020
USD Euro S6D AUD GBP CHF CAD RMB HKS AR ND RUB
£ B s i i LR mw ARE Ar RABAE MR Ef
RVBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMBOOO RWB'OO0 RMBODO RWBOOD RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Contract assets 8920 7,694 24 - - - - - - - - -
Trade and bils receivables onge 23308 8392 121274 331816 120388 27848 - %88 67186 28015 23168
Depostts, prepayments and
other receivables 2045 45600 13561 - B0 20443 - 1000 334458 9799 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 44769 4855 - - 847 - - 8 - - - -
Trade and bills payables (14082) (28283 - - (2199 (15207) 23) - - - - -
Accrued expenses and
ofher payables (159,834 = = - (14489 = - (1,028,090) = = = =
Grosseposrearshgfion  CEZEERAREEE
recognised assets and
libites 1002170 53169 67767 121274 370196 309617 2785 (1,027007) 431266 66985 23075 23,168
Notional amounts of forward
foreign exchange contracts
used as economic hedges (146500 (27,354) - (33501) (179,708 (71,308 - - - - - -
Net exposure arising from BEZEERAERE
recognised assets and HERTE
libites %7520 2816 67767 &TT73 190488 288309 27825 (1,027007) 431266 66985 230756 23,168

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E AN -

IAARME R EAL)

28 HEEREEFESMTIAENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) @) B (&)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis i) SBBEDLN
The following table indicates the THRERMWASEER
instantaneous change in the Group’s WEEBRASZERR
profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits/ B HINES BE R A 5% B
(accumulated losses) that would arise if Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@b RE& A
foreign exchange rates to which the Group BHEMA B REREE
has significant exposure at the end of the HREE ZK%‘%IE’\J
reporting period had changed at that date, %Rféﬁ“ B (EE) &
assuming all other risk variables remained Rl EFEJ/( 258
constant. ?g) Hy BN R
2021 2020
Decrease/ Decrease/
(increase)/ (increase)/
in loss after in loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) decrease/ (decrease) increase/
in foreign (increase) in in foreign (decrease) in
exchange accumulated exchange in retained
rates losses rates profits
BEEsE Bz B8
WA, (1) (1)
SMNE BB = RZFEER SN PE 2= RAREE A
E#H(CTE) WD (Em)  EACTE)  Em/ ORd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥BTTT
UsD ET 5% 12,813 10% 83,977
(5%) (12,813) (10%) (83,977)
Euro BT 15% 12,878 10% 2,357
(15%) (12,878) (10%) (2,357)
SGD FTINR T 10% 8,373 5% 2,792
(10%) (8,373) (5%) (2,792
AUD ETT 20% 6,187 10% 7,460
(20%) (6,187) (10%) (7,460)
GBP HEE 10% 23,538 10% 16,726
(10%) (23,538) (10%) (16,726)

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIERIN  AARKEREN)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

28 HEEREEFRESMTIAENAR
BEE (&)

2021

Decrease/

(increase)/

in loss after

Increase/ tax and

(decrease) decrease/

in foreign (increase) in

exchange accumulated

rates losses

REEE

W, ()

SNERE = RZEFER

EFH(TH)  RED(35m)

RMB’000

AR¥T T

CHF Im A BR 10% 20,780
(10%) (20,780)

CAD oy n/a F~E A n/a ~EH
n/afEHR n/af~EH
RMB AR 10% (105,039)
(10%) 105,039

HK$ BT 10% 16,487
(10%) (16,487)

QAR NI RR A 5% 3,931
(5%) (3,931)

VND fiEal n/afiEHA n/af~EH
n/a F~E A n/a FEH

RUB Efm n/a 7B A n/af~EH
n/a FiEA n/a RiE A

SRR (&)

(i) SBREINF(E)

2020
Decrease/
(increase)/
in loss after
Increase/ tax and
(decrease) increase/
in foreign (decrease) in
exchange in retained
rates profits
Hii& 18
B, (K )
SN BE 2% NREHHE
ERHACTRE) i/ CRid)
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
10% 20,257
(10%) (20,257)
10% 2,365
(10%) (2,365)
10% (102,717)
(10%) 102,717
10% 38,221
(10%) (88,221)
10% 5,841
(10%) (5,841)
10% 1,961
(10%) (1,961)
30% 5,908
(30%) (5,908)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BHEEREEREMIENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) @) B (&)

(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) iy SBREDNE)
Results of the analysis as presented in Li‘%j‘%ﬁlm’]’ s R
the above table represent an aggregation AEHAEESERE
of the instantaneous effects on each of L/(%E BTN RE & K AT
the Group entities’ profit/loss after tax EMNFHEFHE BB
and retained profits/(accumulated losses) MREBFBE (Rt
measured in their respective functional B8 ) MBI 2 £
currencies, translated into RMB at the TR EBREAD
exchange rates ruling at the end of the fERGmE /EU\ETE%Z
reporting period for presentation purposes. LA 27515
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the BRESTBREDE
change in foreign exchange rates had FA SN e 3= ) B B A
been applied to remeasure those financial NGt EAEERE
instruments held by the Group which m< A& B R EH
expose the Group to foreign currency risk KA INE B R0 &
at the end of the reporting period, including EETA - BIEUER
inter-company payables and receivables A BERABTEE
within the Group which are denominated BN B FHER
in a currency other than the functional A& E QR FE R
currencies of the lender or the borrower. REWF - T T8
The analysis excludes differences that EEREBINERR
would result from the translation of the M mR /A EER
financial statements of foreign operations E2VEBMEENE
into the Group’s presentation currency. B o BURRE DT TR
The sensitivity analysis is performed on the EA2020 FFHERIFY AL ZE
same basis for 2020. T o

SRS ERPRERARAE
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AANREEREN)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

218

(B=EEHAI -

28

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(e

Fair value measurement

U]

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs,
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Annual Report 2021
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EfE (&)
© AREEFE
() BOIAEBERENS
MEEREE
RABIEER

TR IR R B B
BEERIF 135K A
REEFE - TR
BREHEEBFER
SEERMIAZAR
BEIHES=EIL
BEEM - 2E&MA
BIEME A BIERN
AERMEREEME
ATNRRIETE -

. F1E b E:
EERFE1IE
A B E (A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BHEEREEREMIENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) () NAEERE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities (i) BRAAREEFENS
measured at fair value (continued) RMEERERE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAIEEER(E)
0 Level 2 valuations: Fair value . FoE 4 A :
measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. FRAE2EH
observable inputs which fail to meet A B (B R
Level 1, and not using significant REF1ER
unobservable inputs. Unobservable AR ] B R 2
inputs are inputs for which market BIFFE0NA
data are not available. nEE - BT
SHEAEAT
A ER R g A 2K
B TAHR
AR AR
BEENS T 5 &K
& & A 2
i o
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value . FE3E & | :
measured using significant FRERNT
unobservable inputs. B A BUR
AENARE
B

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEBIN - UAREREN)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value REAAREE

measurements:

Assets
Derivative financial
instruments:

— Forward foreign

— BZHINES K

exchange contracts

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments:

— Forward foreign

&fE

TESRTA :

— BZHINES K

exchange contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BBEREEREMIANDR

EfE (&)

© ARBEFEGE)

() BOIAEBERENS
MEERBE(E)

RABERER (&)

Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 2

DERF2BNAREENE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT
54,514 59,288

- 26,386

R & =2021F12 A
STEIEFE - &1
RE2E ZM - &
A EIERE
ERIEE - AEE
BRAREEEZ K

HHIRAE

RANEE

BR M mERE

B o
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S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 ERREERSHIENDR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) () NAEERE (&)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (i) BRAAREEFENS
measured at fair value (continued) RMEERERE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAEEER (E)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in RE2EBHAAEBE
Level 2 fair value measurements &1 = BT A A E HiT

PEPN -6

The fair value of forward foreign exchange RHIINES DM AR
contracts in Level 2 is determined by BE(F2E)SRA
discounting the contractual forward price 1= Bl & A90E = 40 BR
and deducting the current forward rate. B RlR A K12 AL3R
The discount rate used is derived from FTE - BRETIER
Shibor Swap curve as at the end of the WEHR EBRITHE
reporting period. EIZEFFEFE -

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and (ii) IR D A EEDIER
liabilities carried at other than fair HEeMEERAEBRN
value AREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s 20214 & 2020 5
financial instruments carried at cost or 12A318B A&
amortised cost are not materially different 12 B 7 B8 5H A AR B
from their fair values at 31 December 2021 FEremITAREE
and 2020. BHEARBEITES

RER o

SRS ERPRERARAE
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(B>

29

30

BIERAN  UARERER)

AR A

COMMITMENTS 29
At 31 December 2021, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:
Commitments in respect of FIEF - S
buildings, machinery and
equipment
— Contracted for — 254
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not committed
to enter into any lease contract that is not yet
commenced.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30
(a) Guarantees issued
At 31 December 2021, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:
Guarantees for construction BEAREE - BY
contracts’ bidding, MRB e ER

performance and retentions

As of the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company do not consider it
probable that a claim in excess of the provision
for warranties provided by the Group will be made
against the Group under any of the guarantees.
The maximum liability of the Group as of the end
of the reporting period under the guarantees
issued is the amount disclosed above.

222 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2021

AiE

R2021 12 A31 8 » RE I

WEFAERBEZIACEKREER
AEFENT
2021 2020

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

35,026 35,026

HZE2021F12 8318 » AREE
RENT ML ARFABHRITHEAES
H o

HAREE

(@) B ER

R2021F12 A31H » &N &
BB THIER :

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TRT

749,875 1,930,375

RBEEHR - ARBEZR
AT RE R R R (E 42
REAEERLBEBARE
PR B RIE BBV R -
AEBRBEHRRIED %
HERNREEER XM
WENETHR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

30 HARERE(E)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(i)

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India, both wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, jointly received
a notice that they are being sued by a
former sub-contractor in India in respect
of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated
in the sub-contract agreement entered
into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former sub-contractor. Shenyang Yuanda
has made a counterclaim against this sub-
contractor for non-performance of the sub-
contract agreement. On 30 September
2016, a first instance court judgement
has been rendered in favour of Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India and pursuant to
which the former sub-contractor shall pay
to Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India
damages in the amount of INR81.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB7.0
million) plus accrued interest.

b) BEEEBRRNHARE

R 2009%F 12 A » &
EEMRZEMNBER
ABGEAN REAH
EHEFBEERA - 48
BEWEEDNRI DB
&R E R REXR
EETRITEREAN
LTS B R M A
P BB FTE]R A
IR RER - BHE
RNITERN D BEA
ERITHBEEmERE
HREBZE - R2016F
9A30H ' RIAERE
BHEREAREKX
ENE B 5 AR IR 52 2
R RIS B AR
BERARERAHE
SFIEKEEES1.8H
SHEEL(OER
ARE70BEIT) M
FEETFE o
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(B=EEHAI -

30

(o)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India later on filed
appeals and as at the date of these
financial statements, the lawsuit is under
reviewed before the Hon’ble High Court
of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may
amount to approximately INR1,410.8
million (equivalent to approximately
RMB120.9 million) plus accrued interest.
Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India deny
any liability in respect of the appeal filed by
the former sub-contractor and, based on
legal advice, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the court
will find against Shenyang Yuanda and/or
Yuanda India. No provision has therefore
been made in respect of this claim.
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(b)

BRZRFRVIAREE

(%)

)

(%)

LRI B G =
ARBERNNEEHEZR
o EFF - MARAR
WERAHE - FAER
% EHon'ble & % )&
FreEig o &SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

30 HARERE(E)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(continued)

(i

In addition to the lawsuit mentioned in
Note 30(b)(i), certain subsidiaries of the
Group are named defendants on other
lawsuits, arbitrations or tax disputes in
respect of construction work carried out
by them. As at the date of these financial
statements, these lawsuits, arbitrations
and disputes are under reviewed before
courts, arbitrators or tax bureaus. If these
subsidiaries are found to be liable, the
total expected monetary compensation
may amount to approximately RMB295.4
million, of which RMB22.5 million has
already been provided for and the Group’s
bank deposits and other deposits of
RMB59.5 million at 31 December 2021
was frozen by courts or insurance
companies for certain of these lawsuits
or disputes. Based on legal advice and
assessment from the directors of the
Company on these lawsuits, arbitrations or
tax disputes, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the
courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits
and arbitrations.

b) BEEEBRRNHARE

(%&)

(i)

B 7R Bt 5 30(0)(i) BT it
B RSN - NEEE
TBF B A AR IE A
EHEEETENEM
A - RE IR A AL
DI E A o RAEE
G G = R 453
A R E R AL IE R
VAT - hE B RS
B - RSB
NAEEHEAEE LR
£ EHeE/ES
RE 4= AR #2054
A& HHEFE
ARB25H5&T
72021412 431 H
EERITER R EA
BRPPARKS9.5H
S EEEFAD
WD R SR BE A
AURA - RIBZEF
IFMEEEE R R
RABEEFTE - &
REEBWTHEZ
LRk i B 25t

AL FARAL PRI
B A AR AR B

B A TR -
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(B=EEHAI -

AARE R EAL)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(©

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain
construction materials supplied by the Group was
found to contain asbestos in two construction
projects in Australia. The Group is cooperating
with relevant authorities on investigation into the
reason for the reported cases. As at the date of
these financial statements, asbestos was not
found in other projects constructed by the Group
and there was no related legal action against
the Group in Australia. As the investigation is yet
to be completed and claims against the Group
from contractors have not been quantified, the
directors of the Company cannot reliably estimate
the repair cost and potential compensation for
projects found with asbestos. No provision in this
regard has therefore been made.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 A A FEHE BB AR R TR
POSITION
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

#at ARBTR ARETT

Non-current assets FIRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB R RIIRE 1,998,020 2,056,670
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other TE AR 7% E M FE R
receivables 342 325
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIReEEY 1,557 1,841
1,899 2,166
Current liabilities nEBAE
Accrued expenses and JE & R S R L A FE A 3R
other payables 1,033,572 1,061,604
Net current liabilities HREEEFEE (1,031,673) (1,059,438)
NET ASSETS FEE 966,347 997,232
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ¥4 26
Share capital A&7 519,723 519,723
Reserves G 446,624 477,509
TOTAL EQUITY R 966,347 997,232
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32

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND
HEIGHTENED GEOPOLITICAL TENSIONS

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 and the
heightened geopolitical tensions continues to bring
uncertainties to the Group’s operating environment
and may impact the Group’s operations and financial
position. Preventive and control measures such as
working from home, travel restrictions and quarantine
were adopted in certain cities due to the outbreak of
COVID-19, the Group’s projects located in such cities
was deferred during the period when such period was
taken.

Despite of the gradual easing of the original Covid-19
pandemic in Mainland China, various travel restrictions
and preventive measures are still in place to avoid
wide-spread of the Covid-19 variants. In addition, the
heightened geopolitical tensions across the globe brings
additional uncertainties to world economies as these
events developed. Accordingly, the Group has been
closely monitoring the impact of the developments on
the Group’s business and keep contingency measures in
place and under review. The directors of the Company
confirm that these contingency measures included but
not limited to, assessing the readiness of the production
units and revisiting the progress of curtain wall systems
projects, reassessing the adequacy and suitability of the
Group’s existing suppliers inventory of raw materials,
the expanding of the Group’s supplier base in a view
to negotiating with customers on possible delay in
delivery timetables, increase monitoring of the business
environment of the Group’s customers, and improving
the Group’s cash management by expediting debtor
settlements and negotiating with suppliers on payment
extensions. The Group will keep the contingency
measures under review as the situation evolves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND
HEIGHTENED GEOPOLITICAL TENSIONS
(continued)

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned,
the production and delivery on curtain wall systems
construction would be further delayed by the Covid-19
related preventive measures and heightened geopolitical
tensions, but the directors of the Company consider that
such impact could be reduced by the Group’s expedition
of the production/construction process when the
situation resume to normal. In addition, the COVID-19
pandemic also significantly impact the repayment
abilities of the Group’s debtors and the willingness of
the main contractor to promote construction, which
in turn result in additional impairment losses on trade
receivables and/or contract assets in current period and
the credit risk may continue to increase in future periods.

As set in Note 28(d), fluctuation of exchange rates may
have impact on Group’s financial performance from
the overseas construction contracts. The Group has
been monitoring recent fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates and the impact on the financial statements and
implemented contingency measures, including entering
into forward foreign exchange contracts with major
and reputable financial institutions to hedge its foreign
exchange risk exposure.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(REEERIN AAREREM)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, and a
new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BORR AT 75 2 2 2ERIE 35E (15T K) » IR B2 HER

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

B & a1 ERIFE 16 5 (185THK) » WF - BERRZE -
TEREE FHi2 BTy T2 3R

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BIfR @51 BRI 37 5 (65T K) - BIREX) — ETTEAIRIEA

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BB 75 # 5 2E R 2018 4F 2 2020 F R, F [Z 20

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

EIER 251 2ERIE 1 5% (155TK) - BHEESE BB LI TE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

B &5 2E Al 1
SRS

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

BIR 5 ERE 85 (1E5TA) » Bat It A9/ EH

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

from a single transaction

ERE A ERE 12305 (1BFTA) - HE—XZELHEER R IEHFBAIELKE
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31 BIEFEMARERNZIE
T& TEFTAER (BB B 75 S o 2
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Hﬂ%#&%m%iﬁq ZEER B
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}

JHE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
LA B 8zt 2 18
IR ST AR

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022

202241 A1H

1 January 2022

202241 H1H

1 January 2022
202241 H1H

1 January 2023
202341 A1H

1 January 2023

202341 H1H

1 January 2023

202341 A 1H

1 January 2023

202841 H1H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (continued)

Based on the assessment on the impact of these
developments, so far, the Group has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY AND ULTIMATE
HOLDING PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2021 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate holding party of
the Company as at 31 December 2021 to be the
Controlling Shareholder. The immediate holding entity
does not produce financial statements available for
public use.
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Bl Five Year Financial Summary
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBHIBHEN  UARKBEN)

Results £

Revenue WA

(Loss)/profit from operations L2 (B1) /FE
Finances costs BEKA

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Bial (E1R) /FE
M

Fr(ER)/HE

AT AL
KA EIHER

FR(ER)/FE

BERAR
FRBPEE

mBEE
RBAME

nBEEFE
BEERRYAR
FRBDARE
FEE
BARRE

A

it

RRFRRIES
G Faet

FFEB B

BEx

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 2020 % 20194 2018 4 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
3,055,262 2,735,572 4,041,253 4,615,704 5,688,650
(838,774) (363,080) 338,541 222,929 291,073
(102,860) (227,642) (142,523) (68,767) (232,801)
(941,634) (590,722) 196,018 154,162 58,272
(54,195) (99,903) (106,198) (65,991) 27 457
(995,829) (690,625) 89,820 88,171 85,729
(995,829) (690,625) 89,820 79,119 60,652
- — = 9,052 25,077
(995,829) (690,625) 89,820 88,171 85,729
916,939 1,000,387 1,134,011 1,355,031 1,672,104
5,863,411 7,376,081 8,399,134 8,706,332 9,809,008
5,049,674 5,686,072 6,624,937 7,048,236 7,300,206
813,737 1,690,009 1,774,197 1,658,096 2,508,802
1,730,676 2,690,396 2,908,208 3,013,127 4,180,906
578,678 589,644 176,513 305,000 982,640
1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,198,266
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
632,275 1,581,029 2,211,972 2,188,404 2,817,332
1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,337,055
= = = = (138,789)
1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,198,266
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